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          1  WOMEN'S ISSUES AND HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Good afternoon.

          3  My name is Helen Sears, and I'm Chair of the Women's

          4  Issues Committee.  And to my left is the Chair of

          5  the Health Committee, my colleague Joel Rivera.  And

          6  today  --  before I go on, I always like to

          7  introduce people that are here with us, because

          8  colleagues will be coming and going.  We have Sara

          9  Gonzalez, who is with us.  Councilwoman from

         10  Brooklyn.  Maria Arroyo, from the Bronx.  We have

         11   --  oh yes, of course.  And we have  --  oh,

         12  Melissa.  You know I always call her by Melissa,

         13  because my niece is Melissa, but that's not her last

         14  name.  So here we are.  And I'm going to have to put

         15  my dark glasses on at some point, because they're

         16  the prescription glasses. I don't have the rest.

         17  Viverito.  Melissa Viverito.  And I'm very happy

         18  that you are all here today.

         19                 We have Ann Thomas, who is of

         20  Counsel.  Baaba Halm, who is our Counsel.  And we're

         21  going to start.

         22                 Oh, and we're joined by Rosie Mendez.

         23    Thank you for joining us.  Well maybe, we want to

         24  misbehave.  We've go to think about that.  All

         25  right.
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          2                 We're dealing today with sexual

          3  violence against women and girls in New York City.

          4  And exactly what is being done about that.

          5                 Sexual violence is a significant

          6  social and health problem in the United States.  And

          7  it certainly is growing faster than we'd like to

          8  think it's growing in New York City.  Although rape

          9  is a gender- neutral crime, findings indicate that

         10  most rape victims are female.  And what I would like

         11  to inject here is that sexual violence takes form in

         12  many ways.  So I would like everyone here to

         13  recognize that we see this as a more global issue,

         14  that we view sexual violence as a global issue,

         15  because there are unfortunately, many forms that it

         16  manifests itself in.  So we may be dealing with this

         17  one category of sexual assault, but it doesn't mean

         18  that we negate all the others.  And we certainly

         19  will be dealing with them in other hearings.

         20                 And today, we hope to hear from you

         21  to come out of this hearing exactly where you think

         22  the shortcomings are, what needs to be expanded, and

         23  what we haven't identified that is so critical to

         24  this issue.  Because rather than decreasing, with

         25  all the programs that have recently come into play,
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          2  with City Council fundings that they have had in the

          3  last few years, the issue is growing.  That doesn't

          4  mean those groups that are really working with these

          5  problems are not doing their job.  It means that

          6  there's not enough funding so that they can expand

          7  in dealing with these issues.

          8                 Nationally, it is reported that

          9  almost 18 million females, and almost 3 million

         10  males in the United States have been raped.  In New

         11  York City, it is estimated that about 12,000 rapes

         12  occur each year.  Furthermore, according to the

         13  latest NYPD statistics, reports of rape are up more

         14  than 13 percent Citywide this year, compared to the

         15  same period in 2005.  Those are very alarming

         16  numbers.

         17                 The impact of sexual violence on

         18  survivors, their family, and our local communities

         19  is immense.  Survivors deal with the emotional

         20  consequences and immediate and long- term health

         21  needs, including physical and mental health

         22  services.  The economic consequences are also

         23  staggering.  Rape and other sexual assaults of

         24  adults cause and annual, minimal loss of $127

         25  billion, or about $508 per U.S. Resident.
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          2                 This includes tangible losses such as

          3  initial police response, medical care, mental health

          4  services, property damage or loss, and loss of

          5  productivity and intangible losses such as loss of

          6  quality of life, pain, and suffering.

          7                 New York City and community- based

          8  organizations, the CBOs that you hear a lot about,

          9  offer many services to sexual violence survivors,

         10  including legal and medical advocacy, as well as

         11  counseling and health services.  However, there

         12  appears to be little or no services designated to

         13  reach out to survivors who do not report their

         14  victimizations.  According to the New York Alliance

         15  Against Sexual Assault, less than 30 percent of

         16  survivors report their victimization and receive the

         17  help that they may need. Some advocates have

         18  proposed that health care providers should consider

         19  screening all clients to determine the need for

         20  appropriate services or referrals.

         21                 Also, it is important the City's

         22  sexual violence prevention, education, and outreach

         23  strategies include all members of our communities.

         24  Prevention, education, and outreach is not just for

         25  women.  It should also include men.  Boys, schools,
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          2  families, communities, industries, government, and

          3  the media. Everyone should be sent a clear message

          4  that sexual violence is wrong.

          5                 Sexual violence had attention in the

          6  last few short years.  And I was just discussing

          7  earlier that unfortunately, it has not reached the

          8  plateau that it should.  It hasn't reached the

          9  plateau of the ugliness of it.  The impact of it.

         10  The severity of health damage.  And what we need is

         11  to enlist, I believe, every organization, the media.

         12    The hearings that we do have to have an impact,

         13  and bring greater highlight to this issue.  Because

         14  it is an issue that's been very quiet.  The shades

         15  have been pulled down on it.  And now that it has

         16  reached some level of awareness,   -- and it isn't

         17  where it isn't enough.  It hasn't reached the impact

         18  that it's on everybody's mind that it is wrong, it

         19  is dangerous, it is harmful, and it should not be

         20  tolerated.  And it has no ethnic boundaries.  None.

         21  And that is what we must get across.  And we're

         22  going to have to enlist the help of everybody to do

         23  that.

         24                 Moreover, the Committees will seek to

         25  learn if there are gaps in the delivery of services
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          2  to survivors.  Whether all communities and groups

          3  are adequately served.  And the prevention methods

          4  used to eliminate and/or reduce sexual violence in

          5  the City.

          6                 Before we do, I know that my

          7  colleague Joel Rivera has some thoughts that he

          8  would certainly like to share with all of you.

          9  Councilman Rivera.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         11  much.  Good afternoon, and welcome everyone here to

         12  City Hall.  I am Joel Rivera, the Chair of the

         13  Health Committee.  And I want to thank my colleague,

         14  Council Member Helen Sears for proposing that we

         15  have this joint hearing on a very important topic

         16  that we are discussing here today, and understanding

         17  what is being done in New York City to address

         18  sexual violence against women and girls.

         19                 Too often, when we talk about sexual

         20  violence, we focus on the criminal justice aspects

         21  of it.  While it is important that we ensure that

         22  perpetrators are appropriately punished for

         23  committing acts of sexual violence, it is also

         24  important that we broaden the lens through which we

         25  look at this topic.  Today we want to focus on the
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          2  public health aspects of sexual violence.

          3                 According to the National Violence

          4  Against Women Survey, one out of every six women

          5  have been raped at some point of their lives.  The

          6  New York City Alliance Against Sexual Assault

          7  estimates that approximately 12,000 occur every year

          8  throughout the City of New York.  As you all know,

          9  sexual violence is much broader than rape.  It

         10  includes any form of sexual contact or attention

         11  that is unwanted by the victim, such as voyeurism,

         12  and molestation. Molestation includes acts such as

         13  fondling and touching of a person's private areas.

         14                 According to the United States

         15  Justice Department, one out of three girls, and one

         16  out of every seven boys is molested before the age

         17  of 18.  As scary as these stats are, it is important

         18  that we remember that they represent what is

         19  reported.  Because so many survivors do not report

         20  the actual number of people affected by sexual

         21  violence, it actually may be much greater.

         22                 People may wonder how sexual violence

         23  is a public health problem.  Well, numerous studies

         24  have shown that survivors of sexual violence suffer

         25  from physical and mental health problems, both in
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          2  the short term and long term.  In the immediate

          3  aftermath of an incident of sexual violence a

          4  survivor often experiences physical symptoms such as

          5  bruising, general muscle tension and soreness,

          6  headache, gastrointestinal irritability, nausea,

          7  sleep and eating disorders.  Complications such as

          8  vaginal and/or anal trauma, or the spread of

          9  sexually- transmitted diseases and infections may

         10  also result from sexual violence, depending on the

         11  nature of the assault.

         12                 Acute psychological reactions

         13  immediately after an incident of sexual assault

         14  include: Emotional shock, uncontrollable crying,

         15  nervous laughing, withdrawal, dissatisfaction,

         16  numbness, and denial about the incident.

         17                 In addition, many survivors of sexual

         18  violence develop post- traumatic stress disorder,

         19  which many studies have found leads to overall poor

         20  health problems.  Researchers have found that the

         21  trauma results in neurochemical changes in the

         22  brain, which in turn may have biological,

         23  psychological, and behavioral effects on the

         24  survivor's health.

         25                 When we think about all of these
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          2  health effects, and then think about how many people

          3  have survived some form of sexual violence, it

          4  become clear that this is a public health problem

          5  that affects too many people.

          6                 Moreover, because most people do not

          7  report their victimization, there may be many people

          8  who suffer from physical and mental health problems,

          9  but who are not getting the appropriate treatment to

         10  address the underlying causes.

         11                 Today we are here to better

         12  understand what services are being offered

         13  throughout this City to comprehensively address the

         14  needs of survivors of sexual violence.  We want to

         15  explore what is being done to identify more

         16  survivors, treat long- term and short- term physical

         17  and mental health effects of survivors, and prevent

         18  the problem of sexual violence.

         19                 The City Council allocates just over

         20  $900,000 a year towards issues and organizations

         21  that deal with these issues every single year.  And

         22  what we want to discuss is what resources are needed

         23  to ensure that our mothers and our children, our

         24  daughters are protected.  That they have the proper

         25  information.  That they're not afraid to come out
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          2  and say, "I have been victimized, and I need help".

          3  And how to be a peer counselor to advise other

          4  friends that help is out there, and not to keep this

          5  a silent form of victimization.  Because if one

          6  person gets victimized, and doesn't disclose it, how

          7  many more people will get victimized as well?

          8                 And that's what we have to try to

          9  prevent in the future.  And that's why we are here

         10  today, to discuss what resources the City of New

         11  York should be putting forward to make sure that no

         12  more of our mothers and daughters are victimized.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you very

         15  much, Council Member Rivera.  We're going to call

         16  our first panel.  But before I do, I should make

         17  note that this month is Sexual Assault Awareness

         18  Month.  So it's very appropriate that we're having

         19  this.  And for also  --  for all the testimony that

         20  we're going to hear, our objective is not to view

         21  this issue so narrowly as it has been viewed.  Is to

         22  absolutely bring it to the level that it should, in

         23  the far more global picture.

         24                 With that, we have as our first

         25  panel, and they will be three panelists, Department
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          2  of Mental Health and Hygiene, Lorna Thorpe.  The

          3  Office of the Mayor, Richard Plansky.  And Health

          4  and Hospitals Corporation, LaRay Brown.  Welcome.

          5  It's good to have you back with us.

          6                 And while they are getting prepared,

          7  we are joined by our colleague, Helen Foster.  And I

          8  thought I saw Charles Barron come in.  Oh, okay.

          9  And Yvette Clarke is here.  And Kendall Steward.

         10  Where are you Kendall?  You sneaked by me.  How is

         11  that possible?  And Inez Dickens.  So I'm delighted

         12  that you have made it.

         13                 Please introduce yourselves for the

         14  record.  Who is going to go first?  It doesn't

         15  really  --  okay.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: I'll be

         17  speaking first. My name is Lorna Thorpe.  I'm Deputy

         18  Commissioner of Health at the Department of Health

         19  and Mental Hygiene.

         20                 DEPUTY COORDINATOR PLANSKY: Good

         21  afternoon.  My name is Richard Plansky.  I'm the

         22  Deputy Criminal Justice Coordinator for Mayor

         23  Bloomberg.

         24                 MS. BROWN: Good afternoon.  My name

         25  is LaRay Brown, Senior Vice President at New York
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          2  City Health and Hospitals Corporation.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: Thank

          4  you.  Good afternoon Chairpersons Rivera and Sears,

          5  and members of the Committees of both Health and

          6  Women's Issue.  My name again, is Lorna Thorpe, and

          7  I am Deputy Commissioner for the Division of

          8  Epidemiology at the Department of Health and Mental

          9  Hygiene.  And thank you for inviting me to discuss

         10  sexual violence against women and girls in New York

         11  City.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Excuse me.  Do you

         13  have any testimony that can be handed out?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: We do.

         15  We handed it in already.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Oh, you did?

         17  Okay.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: Would you

         19  like to wait?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Yes.  Just so they

         21  may have that before them.  Maybe you had it too

         22  organized for us.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: Well next

         24  time we'll hold on to it.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: Set to

                                                            16

          1  WOMEN'S ISSUES AND HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  go?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Yes, great.  Thank

          4  you.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: Okay.

          6  Well, thank you for inviting me to discuss sexual

          7  violence against women and girls in New York City,

          8  and to describe what the Department of Health and

          9  Mental Hygiene is doing to address the issue.

         10                 One of the Department of Health and

         11  Mental Hygiene's primary roles is to identify and

         12  monitor intentional injuries and deaths in New York

         13  City.  The Bureau of Injury Epidemiology maintains

         14  what's known as the Injury Surveillance System.  We

         15  refer to it as ISS.  The system enables the

         16  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene to monitor

         17  trends in both intentional and unintentional

         18  injuries.  Bureau staff conduct medical chart

         19  reviews and data abstractions one week every quarter

         20  of the year, from a sample of 23 City hospitals,

         21  which accounts for about 70 percent of all violent

         22  assault hospitalizations Citywide.  In particular,

         23  this system, the ISS, carefully tracks information

         24  on the perpetrator of the assault  --  this is any

         25  kind of violent assault, not just sexual assault  --
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          2    The purpose of tracking information on

          3  perpetrators is to better identify intimate partner

          4  violence, and to disassociate it from non- intimate

          5  partner violence.

          6                 Emergency Department visits and

          7  deaths due to intimate partner violence have been

          8  tracked since 1997, and this is off the testimony,

          9  but this is fairly unique for health departments to

         10  do this, around the country.  Hospitalizations due

         11  to intimate partner violence were added in to the

         12  surveillance system in 2005, enabling staff to

         13  capture more comprehensive picture of New York City

         14  injuries.  Based on this surveillance system, we

         15  know that a substantial proportion of the violence

         16  against women in New York City is perpetrated by an

         17  intimate partner.  While most of the documented

         18  violence against women is not necessarily sexual

         19  assaults, approximately one third of the violence

         20  against women resulting in death or serious injury

         21  is documented as intimate partner violence.

         22                 The Injury Surveillance System also

         23  tells us that intimate partner violence has not

         24  decreased over time.  Mortality rates due to

         25  intimate partner violence have declined only
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          2  slightly since 1997.  Studying how intentional

          3  injuries to women, particularly those associated

          4  with intimate partner violence, are distributed in

          5  the population allows us to monitor trends, identify

          6  groups that are at higher risk, and inform

          7  prevention efforts such as education campaigns.

          8                 The Injury Surveillance System

          9  provides critical information on serious assault

         10  injuries, not all women or girls who suffer from

         11  sexual assaults or partner violence go to hospitals.

         12  To monitor this, and other health conditions, the

         13  Division of Epidemiology also conducts a number of

         14  population- based surveys, such as the Community

         15  Health Survey, the Youth Risk Behavior Survey, and

         16  the New York City Health and Nutrition Examination

         17  Survey.  These surveys include questions regarding

         18  domestic violence and sexual violence.  I'd like to

         19  share some of these questions, and our findings,

         20  with you.

         21                 In our 2004 Community Health Survey,

         22  we asked the question, "In the past 12 months, have

         23  you been frightened for the safety of your self,

         24  your children, or friends, because of the anger or

         25  threats of an intimate partner?".  Of the female
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          2  respondents, three percent responded "Yes".  This

          3  represents approximately 81,000 female New Yorkers.

          4                 In the same survey, we also asked,

          5   "In the past 12 months, have you sustained injuries

          6  such as bruises, cuts, a black eye, or broken bones,

          7  as a result of behavior of an intimate partner?".

          8  Among the female respondents, one percent responded

          9   "Yes", representing approximately 32,000 female New

         10  Yorkers.

         11                 In our 2005 Youth Risk Behavior

         12  Survey, conducted in New York City Public High

         13  Schools, we asked the question  --  off the

         14  testimony, this is an anonymous, self- administered

         15  questionnaire to high school students  --  we asked

         16  the question, "During the past 12 months, did your

         17  boyfriend or girlfriend ever hit, slap, or

         18  physically hurt you on purpose?".  Of female

         19  respondents, grades nine through twelve, 11 percent

         20  responded "Yes", representing approximately 15,000

         21  girls attending New York City public schools.

         22                 In the same survey, we also asked,

         23   "Have you ever been physically forced to have

         24  sexual intercourse when you did not want to?"  Of

         25  female respondents, nine percent responded "Yes",
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          2  representing approximately 14,000 girls attending

          3  New York City public schools.

          4                 The Department of Health and Mental

          5  Hygiene is currently compiling a comprehensive

          6  report on the violence against women in New York

          7  City, bringing together findings from both our

          8  population- based surveys and the Injury

          9  Surveillance System data on Emergency Department

         10  visits, hospitalizations, and homicides.  The

         11  complete analysis will provide information about who

         12  is at greater risk of death or injury due to

         13  intimate partner violence.  As well as some of the

         14  health concerns more often experienced by women who

         15  fear their intimate partner.

         16                 What we do know is that young adult

         17  women, Black and Hispanic women, and those who live

         18  in neighborhoods with low average income are at

         19  higher risk of death or injury due to intimate

         20  partner violence.  Women in these categories were

         21  also more likely to report fear of their intimate

         22  partner.

         23                 We also know that women who fear

         24  their intimate partner experience more health

         25  concerns, physical and mental health concerns, than
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          2  women who do not.  Data on female teens reflect this

          3  pattern seen among adults.  For example:

          4                 The prevalence of what we call

          5   "psychologic distress" is three and a half times

          6  higher in women reporting fear of their intimate

          7  partner than women who don't report fear.

          8                 The prevalence of attempted suicide

          9  was four times higher in teens reporting physical

         10  dating violence.

         11                 The prevalence of binge drinking was

         12  two times higher in women reporting fear.

         13                 The report will conclude with

         14  recommendations to address many of these findings.

         15  These will include actions that health care systems

         16  and health providers can implement; how

         17  organizations and agencies can better cooperate;

         18  ideas for affecting community norms around domestic

         19  violence; and suggested initiatives and specific

         20  actions steps for the Department of Health and

         21  Mental Hygiene, and other City agencies working on

         22  domestic violence.  We expect to have this report

         23  completed this Summer.

         24                 While surveillance is instrumental in

         25  detecting trends and shaping policy, we understand
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          2  that this is just one piece of the puzzle.  The

          3  Department is also engaged in a number of other

          4  efforts which I'll briefly outline for you today.

          5                 The Department's STD, HIV, and

          6  tuberculosis clinics, as well as the correctional

          7  health program at Rikers Island, serve as a point of

          8  access through which a sexual assault survivor may

          9  be identified, and referred to services, treatment

         10  and care.  Domestic violence risk assessments are a

         11  standard of practice within each of these settings.

         12  Patients are explicitly asked about, and screened

         13  for histories of physical and sexual abuse, and

         14  domestic violence during all intake evaluations.  If

         15  the incident or incidents reported by the patient

         16  occurred in the past, a clinician would provide a

         17  referral for further counseling.  If a patient

         18  reports an assault within 72 hours of the visit,

         19  they are referred directly to a hospital Emergency

         20  Department for forensic exams, and are encouraged to

         21  report the incident to the police.

         22                 Additionally, our Office of

         23  Correctional Health operates an Intimate Partner

         24  Violence program at the Rose M. Singer Women's

         25  Detention Center, on Rikers Island, which screens
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          2  newly incarcerated females, not only for sexual

          3  assault and physical abuse, but also for domestic

          4  violence.  Our policy included automatic referrals

          5  for women, any women, with a positive screen, to an

          6  on- site provider, who conducts and Intimate Partner

          7  Violence assessment, provides group or individual

          8  counseling and education, and assists with safety

          9  planning and community referrals.

         10                 As committees are aware, in many

         11  cases, sexual assault and sexual violence is a

         12  consequence of domestic violence. The Department of

         13  Health and Mental Hygiene is currently working on

         14  two domestic violence awareness campaigns, using

         15  basic principles of public health communications to

         16  ensure their success. Developing these campaigns

         17  requires identifying the appropriate target

         18  audience, developing a clear and concise message

         19  that is sensitive to various cultures and

         20  communities, and deciding how, where, and to what

         21  degree the message will be disseminated, so that

         22  survivors, potential victims, and the general

         23  community get the appropriate and most effective

         24  message.

         25                 The first of these awareness
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          2  campaigns is being implemented on Rikers Island,

          3  where we initiated a poster campaign throughout the

          4  clinic waiting areas, treatment rooms, and

          5  clinicians offices where patients are seen.  This

          6  poster campaign will be expanded to the housing

          7  areas and visitor center in the coming months.  We

          8  are also training all relevant clinical and mental

          9  health staff, HIV counselors, and discharge planners

         10  on Rikers Island on intimate partner violence

         11  prevention, education, and awareness.

         12                 For the second campaign, the

         13  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene has recently

         14  partnered with Brooklyn CONNECT, a community- based

         15  organization, a network of community- based

         16  organizations, on the development and implementation

         17  of a domestic violence community campaign in Central

         18  Brooklyn, that will engage and empower bystanders to

         19  assist domestic violence victims in getting help,

         20  while maintaining their own safety.  The campaign is

         21  set to launch in late April, the end of this month.

         22  And it will drive home an important message that

         23  domestic violence is not a private matter, and that

         24  we need to break the inaction and silence around it.

         25    Domestic violence and sexual assault affect
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          2  victims and those close to them, as well as those in

          3  the surrounding community. Key components of the

          4  campaign include educating bystanders about

          5  resources on how to help a victim get help safely

          6  and sensibly; and encouraging bystanders to discuss

          7  the situation with a professional.

          8                 In the coming months, the Department

          9  of Health and Mental Hygiene also plans to publish

         10  and disseminate guidelines to physicians concerning

         11  domestic violence through the Department's City

         12  Information publication.  We call it the CHI.  The

         13  CHI is mailed to approximately 60,000 New York City

         14  health care providers on a regular basis, and has

         15  proven to be a valuable health education resource.

         16  The goal of this particular publication will be to

         17  raise awareness on how to identify, screen for,

         18  document, and refer patients suffering from domestic

         19  violence.

         20                 Finally, it's worth noting that the

         21  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene has launched

         22  an internal employee awareness and education

         23  campaign for its own staff.  The campaign, which is

         24  currently on- going, includes regular communications

         25  from the agency's leadership on the seriousness of
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          2  the issue, and a series of six brown bag lunch

          3  presentations focusing on what domestic violence is,

          4  how it can affect the workplace, and what all

          5  employees can do contribute to a safe environment

          6  The campaign includes the widespread placement of

          7  domestic violence awareness posters that contain

          8  resource information.

          9                 In closing, I would like to reiterate

         10  that the Department takes sexual violence and

         11  domestic violence very seriously, and will continue

         12  to explore ways to contribute to the prevention,

         13  treatment, and detection of these issues.

         14                 Thanks again for having me here

         15  today.  I am pleased to answer any questions you may

         16  have.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: I think what we'll

         18  do, is we'll hear from all and then I know that we

         19  all have questions, but this may just expedite the

         20  process.  And move along with that.  Thank you.

         21                 MR. PLANSKY: Good afternoon

         22  Chairpersons Rivera and Sears, members of the

         23  Committees on Health and Women's Issues, and other

         24  members of the Council.  My name is Richard Plansky,

         25  and I am the Deputy Criminal Justice Coordinator for
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          2  the City of New York.  Thank you for the opportunity

          3  to speak to you today about the Sexual Assault

          4  Response Team project, or SART, one of the Bloomberg

          5  Administration's most innovative and aggressive

          6  initiatives to combat sexual violence against women.

          7                 Since day one of this Administration,

          8  fighting sex crimes and the offenders who commit

          9  them has been a top priority. Within months of

         10  taking office, Mayor Bloomberg made this eminently

         11  clear by bringing together the best minds in the

         12  business to form the Mayor's Sexual Assault Task

         13  Force, the first Citywide working group of its kind,

         14  and by challenging this group to find new and better

         15  ways to investigate, prosecute, and prevent sexual

         16  assault in the City.  Over the last four years, that

         17  is exactly what this group has done.

         18                 And there is no better example of the

         19  Mayor's commitment to this issue than the Sexual

         20  Assault Response Team project, an initiative that

         21  has reinvented the way that City hospitals deliver

         22  essential services to the victims of sexual assault,

         23  while at the same time, enhancing the prosecutions

         24  of those that commit these terrible crimes.

         25            The SART program was launched in the Bronx
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          2  in April of 2004, expanded to Brooklyn in June of

          3  2005, and to both Queens and Manhattan just a few

          4  weeks ago, in late March of this year.  In broad

          5  strokes, here is how it works.  Each SART team

          6  consists of 12 to 15 specially trained Sexual

          7  Assault Forensic Examiners or SAFEs, who are health

          8  care professionals who have received intensive

          9  training in how to properly identify, collect, and

         10  package forensic evidence, accurately document

         11  injuries, and attend to the emotional needs of rape

         12  victims.  SAFE Examiners work in partnership with

         13  rape crisis advocates, who provide victims with

         14  emotional support and referrals to appropriate

         15  services that address immediate needs like a safe

         16  place to stay, and HIV prophylaxis, as well as

         17  longer term needs like counseling and follow- up

         18  medical treatment. Working under the supervision of

         19  a dedicated project coordinator, the SART teams are

         20  on call 24 hours a day, seven days a week, 365 days

         21  a year, to provide every sexual assault victim at

         22  every City hospital with state- of- the- art

         23  forensic and counseling services within one hour of

         24  their arrival.

         25                 It is no exaggeration to say that
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          2  this is a fundamental change in the way that these

          3  critical services are delivered for this City.

          4  Prior to the advent of the SART program, rape

          5  victims who sought treatment at City hospitals

          6  received forensic examinations, but not all of them

          7  were examined by experts, and not all of them were

          8  examined within one hour of their arrival.  Suffice

          9  it to say that the less expert the examination, and

         10  the longer the wait, the more difficult the

         11  experience for the victim, and the more likely that

         12  valuable physical evidence and the victim's

         13  willingness to cooperate with law enforcement will

         14  be lost.

         15                 The SART program directly addressed

         16  these issues by creating a team of examiners and

         17  rape crisis counselors whose only responsibility,

         18  only responsibility is providing high- quality

         19  forensic examinations and counseling services, and

         20  providing those services quickly.  By delivering all

         21  of these services more efficiently, and more

         22  expertly than ever before, the SART teams ensure

         23  that we don't miss one- time- only opportunities to

         24  collect valuable forensic evidence like DNA, hair

         25  and fiber, and photographs of injuries, and that we
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          2  don't re- traumatize victims in doing so.

          3                 So far, the results in the Bronx and

          4  Brooklyn have been nothing short of remarkable.

          5  Since its inception in April of 2004, the Bronx SART

          6  has treated over 400 sexual assault victims, at

          7  Bronx public hospitals.  Of those victims, 95

          8  percent were examined within one hour of their

          9  arrival, compared to only 63 percent in 2003, before

         10  the SART program began.  And 73 percent have

         11  consented to have the rape kits released to law

         12  enforcement for forensic testing.  In addition, 87

         13  percent of the victims were examined for evidence of

         14  microscopic genital injury, using a device called a

         15  colposcope, compared to only 27 percent in 2003.

         16  The dramatically increased use of the colposcope has

         17  resulted in the documenting of genital injuries in

         18  55 percent of the cases, compared to only 28 percent

         19  in 2003, nearly double.  Non- genital injuries were

         20  also documented in 56 percent of the cases, compared

         21  to 45 percent in 2003.  Finally, 63 percent of rape

         22  kits collected from SART hospitals yielded DNA

         23  evidence, compared to only 46 percent at other Bronx

         24  hospitals over the same time period.

         25                 The results in Brooklyn so far have
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          2  been equally impressive.  Nearly 190 victims have

          3  been treated at Brooklyn public hospitals by the

          4  SART teams.  And of those victims, 94 percent were

          5  examined within an hour, compared to only 78 percent

          6  in 2004.  And 90 percent of them have consented to

          7  have the rape kits released to law enforcement for

          8  testing.  Finally, 88 percent were examined with a

          9  colposcope, compared to only 29 percent in 2004.

         10  Genital injuries were documented in 35 percent of

         11  those cases, compared to only 21 percent in 2004.

         12  And non- genital injuries were documented in 36

         13  percent of these cases, compared to only 24 percent

         14  in 2004.

         15                 When a victim walks into a hospital

         16  in the immediate aftermath of a sexual assault, we

         17  have a narrow window of opportunity to accomplish

         18  three key goals: Minimize the victim's trauma, win

         19  her cooperation, and collect valuable forensic

         20  evidence.  Without question, the Sexual Assault

         21  Response Team program has proven to be an effective

         22  and efficient model for accomplishing all three of

         23  these goals.

         24                 As of a few weeks ago, the City has

         25  ensured that every victim who seeks treatment at
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          2  every HHC hospital will receive a forensic

          3  examination administered expertly, and without

          4  delay, will be treated with dignity and respect, and

          5  will receive the services that she needs to recover.

          6    Step one is complete, and now it's time for step

          7  two.

          8                 Step two is ensuring that every

          9  sexual assault victim who seeks treatment at every

         10  hospital in the City, public or private, receives

         11  the same high- quality forensic examination and

         12  counseling.  This is no small task.  And

         13  unfortunately, there is no one- size- fits- all

         14  cookie cutter solution.  But in the months to come,

         15  we will be reaching out to private hospitals

         16  throughout the City to begin exploring ways of

         17  achieving that goal.  And whether it means

         18  public/private partnerships, training, technical

         19  assistance, or the like, we are committed to working

         20  in partnership with the City's private hospitals to

         21  make sure that every victim of sexual assault in

         22  this City receives the care that she deserves.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you very

         25  much.  Ms. Brown.
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          2                 MS. BROWN: Good afternoon.  My name

          3  is LaRay Brown, and I'm a Senior Vice President for

          4  Corporate Planning, Community Health, and

          5  Intergovernmental Relations at New York City Health

          6  and Hospitals Corporation.  I am pleased to be here

          7  in front of Council Member Sears and Council Member

          8  Rivera, to have the opportunity to provide testimony

          9  on HHC's programs to treat victims of rape and

         10  sexual assault.

         11                 HHC has enhanced medical and social

         12  services to meet the needs of rape/sexual assault

         13  victims in accordance with the Sexual Assault Reform

         14  Act, or SARA, or 2000.  The Act requires the

         15  Commissioner of the New York State Department of

         16  Health to develop programs to address sexual assault

         17  and designate hospitals in the State as sites of 24-

         18  hour SAFE, or Sexual Assault Forensic Examiner

         19  programs my colleague spoke about.  Every hospital

         20  in New York State must ensure that all victims of

         21  rape or sexual assault who present to a hospital

         22  provided with care that is comprehensive and

         23  consistent with current standards of practice.  To

         24  be eligible for designation by the New York State

         25  Department of Health as a SAFE program site, the
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          2  hospital has to formally establish a SAFE program

          3  and demonstrate that it meets all the requirements

          4  set forth in State Public Health Law and other

          5  program standards and requirements developed by the

          6  New York State Department of Health, in conjunction

          7  with the New York State Division of Criminal Justice

          8  Services.

          9                 The SAFE program is designed to meet

         10  the needs of sexual assault by providing

         11  compassionate, timely medical care that is

         12  culturally sensitive with examinations conducted by

         13  specially trained forensic examiners that provide

         14  emotional support and reduces further trauma to the

         15  victim.  The requirements for a SAFE program

         16  include:

         17                 The provision of quality medical care

         18  provided to the victim in a private setting

         19  including evaluation, treatment, referral and follow

         20  up.

         21                 Interdisciplinary collaboration

         22  between the hospital SAFE program staff, local law

         23  enforcement, the District Attorney's office, rape

         24  crisis center staff, and other rape and sexual

         25  assault victim services organizations.
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          2                 Forensic examiners to ensure that the

          3  physical evidence collected during the exam is

          4  safely and accurately documented and preserved for

          5  future law enforcement purposes.  And improved

          6  evidence collection may lead to increased rates of

          7  identification, prosecution, and conviction of

          8  sexual assault perpetrators.  SAFE program staff can

          9  also provide expert testimony if necessary, in court

         10  proceedings.

         11                 And finally, standardized data

         12  regarding the incidence of sexual assault victims

         13  seeking treatment in the hospital's Emergency

         14  Departments.

         15                 SAFE Centers of Excellence.  In

         16  addition to the above requirements, hospitals with

         17  an established SAFE program can apply for

         18  designation as a Center of Excellence by

         19  demonstrating that they continuously meet the

         20  following additional requirements. These include:

         21                 Providing treatment to a certain

         22  minimum number of rape and sexual assault victims

         23  treated at the facility each year.

         24                 Having forensic examiners on call 24

         25  hours a day, seven days a week, 365 days a year.
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          2  Sexual assault forensic examiners must hold a

          3  professional license, either MD, RN, CNM, NP, or PA.

          4    They must complete an intensive 40- hour didactic

          5  and clinical training program approved by the State,

          6  and be recertified every three years.

          7                 You also have to have an

          8  appropriately equipped, private room.  And this is

          9  very important.  The issue of privacy. An

         10  appropriately equipped private room, with a phone,

         11  exam forms, evidence collection kit, the colposcope,

         12  et cetera, that can accommodate wheelchair patients

         13  if necessary.

         14                 Providing access to a shower and

         15  clean clothing.

         16                 You have to provide emergency

         17  contraception and prophylaxis on site to treat the

         18  patient if there's a potential for pregnancy or

         19  transmission of sexually- transmitted diseases, HIV,

         20  and Hepatitis B.

         21                 You have to maintain a well

         22  functioning back- up schedule to ensure that the

         23  rape victim is met by a forensic examiner within 60

         24  minutes of arrival to the hospital.

         25                 You must ensure a rape crisis
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          2  advocate is immediately available to offer services.

          3                 And, you must have appropriate

          4  replacement clothing available for the victim.

          5                 I am proud to say that all HHC acute

          6  care hospitals have been designated SAFE Centers of

          7  Excellence by the State. HHC's North Central Bronx

          8  Hospital was the first hospital in the State to

          9  receive such designation.

         10                 Last week, Mayor Michael Bloomberg

         11  announced expansion of the Sexual Assault Response

         12  Team program to public hospitals in Queens and

         13  Manhattan.  The SART program was initiated two years

         14  ago in the Bronx, as my colleague spoke about, in

         15  response to the disproportionately high incidence of

         16  rape in that borough, and subsequently expanded last

         17  year to Brooklyn.  The SART provides state- of- the-

         18  art forensic and counseling services 24 hours a day,

         19  seven days a week, for every sexual assault victim

         20  seeking treatment.  The team is comprised of a

         21  multi- disciplinary group of sexual assault forensic

         22  examiners, including doctors, nurses, and other

         23  clinical staff, and trained rape crisis advocates.

         24  The SART team responds within 60 minutes of

         25  receiving a call from one of our hospitals, and the
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          2  Rape Crisis Advocates respond within 30 minutes.

          3                 More than 400 sexual assault victims

          4  were treated at Bronx hospitals by SART examiners

          5  since the inception of the program.  Of these

          6  victims, 95 percent were 54 percent were examined

          7  within one hour.  Some of our statistics overlap, so

          8  please forgive me if I'm being redundant.  But we

          9  like to brag doubly.  Examined within one hour of

         10  their arrival, compared with 63 percent in 2003,

         11  before the SART program began.  In addition, 87

         12  percent of the victims were examined for evidence of

         13  microscopic genital injury, using the colposcope,

         14  compared to 27 percent in 2003.

         15                 In Brooklyn, nearly 190 victims were

         16  treated in the first year of that program.  And of

         17  those victims, 94 percent were examined within an

         18  hour, compared to 78 percent in 2004.  And 88

         19  percent were examined with this effective tool,

         20  compared to 29 percent in 2004.  It is estimated

         21  that the teams will provide services to

         22  approximately 250 sexual assault victims each during

         23  the first year of operation.  Citywide, more than

         24  half of all rape complainants seek treatment at HHC

         25  hospitals, which is one of the reasons why the
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          2  program was initiated in the public hospitals.

          3                 Communication and training are

          4  critical to the success of the SART.  SART staff

          5  meet monthly with the Mayor's Office of Criminal

          6  Justice Coordinator, and work collaboratively to

          7  coordinate actions among the hospitals.  The New

          8  York City Police Department and the District

          9  Attorney's Offices.   Partnering with the police and

         10  District Attorneys helps us further build on the

         11  comprehensive service that the public hospital

         12  provide to nearly 1,000 rape and sexual assault

         13  victims every year.

         14                 The Bronx SART funding is supported

         15  in part by grants from the U.S. Department of

         16  Justice and the New York State Department of

         17  Criminal Justice Services.  And the remainder of the

         18  expenses were borne by City tax levy.  The Brooklyn,

         19  Manhattan, and Queens programs were funded entirely

         20  by the City.  In addition, the Bronx hospitals

         21  auxiliaries have been very supportive of the

         22  program.  They have raised money to purchase

         23  clothing and toiletries for the victims, and for

         24  other items to help support the program.

         25                 We at HHC are committed to providing
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          2  quality, state of- the- art forensic, medical,

          3  counseling, and support services to every sexual

          4  assault victim seeking care at our facilities.  Our

          5  goal is within one hour of arrival, victims will be

          6  seen by SAFE trained providers, and rape crisis

          7  advocates.  They will have a thorough medical

          8  evaluation, they will receive a forensic examination

          9  to collect evidence, receive counseling designed to

         10  meet their needs, and ensure provision of

         11  appropriate social services.

         12                 I thank you for this opportunity to

         13  provide testimony.  And I'd be happy and I'd be

         14  happy to answer any questions you have.  But before

         15  I close, I'd like to do a commercial.

         16                 This document was put together by one

         17  of my colleagues and other, Dr. Consuella Donka

         18  (phonetic).  And the reason I point out this

         19  document is because whenever any woman comes to an

         20  HHC Emergency Room, for anything, there are a series

         21  of questions that are asked of that individual, so

         22  as to assess, without being too intrusive, to assess

         23  whether there is an issue of domestic violence or

         24  sexual abuse.  The training that's included -  these

         25  guidelines also cover issues not only of domestic
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          2  violence, but elder abuse, child abuse, and the

          3  training that all of our clinicians receive is

          4  mandatory, must be provided every year, and there

          5  are updates that are also required.  If you've

          6  received the training, there is reinforcement

          7  training that occurs throughout our system.

          8                 I'd very much like to share this

          9  document.  We are quite proud of it.  And it is very

         10  comprehensive.  It has the tools, or assessment

         11  tools that are used by the clinicians.  It has

         12  pictures that people can use to assure that they're

         13  doing the right kind of diagnostics.  And it also

         14  records resources that are available at the

         15  community.  It also has resources that can be used

         16  by the staff of the facilities.  That was my

         17  commercial.  I'm finished, and I'll take any

         18  questions you may ask.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you very

         20  much.  Before, I just want to say that we've been

         21  joined by two more colleagues. Marlene Mealy, and

         22  Councilman Michael McMahon, from Staten Island. And

         23  before  --  Oh, Darlene.  Did I say  -- Darlene.

         24  That if you have any question about the seriousness

         25  of this issue with the New York City Council, I'm
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          2  going to ask you to take a look at how many Council

          3  Members are right here at this hearing.  Very rarely

          4  do you see so many at such a busy time.  Because

          5  we're in the middle of budget.  There are hearings.

          6  And they are demonstrating just how serious this

          7  issue is.  And I think you need to all take that

          8  back that the New York City Council is very serious

          9  about developing the awareness, and really working

         10  in depth.

         11                 And I want to thank each and every

         12  one of you, because you are really sending a

         13  message, and that message is very strong, because

         14  when you have so many Council Members on one

         15  particular issue, I don't think that there's

         16  anything stronger than that.

         17                 I have just one question, and then I

         18  will  --  for the moment  --  and then I will assure

         19  that my colleague, Chair Rivera does, because we'll

         20  open it up to the Committee, because I think that

         21  everyone probably has at least one answer.

         22                 I appreciate very much what the

         23  Administration is doing, and I think it's more than

         24  has been done before.  But considering the level,

         25  the ages, the children, the youth, the teenagers,
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          2  that we're dealing with as well as adults, is there

          3  any way that you will put public announcements with

          4  the same degree of importance, as when we have a

          5  star athlete pushing an automobile? Or when we have

          6  some well- known individual and they use them to

          7  stress not only the importance of the issue, but to

          8  really develop their sales.  Now since we are

          9  speaking about this kind of issue, it means that

         10  that power from the individual that every age group

         11  can relate to, would develop the strength to bring

         12  that forward into families, into the schools.

         13  Because as much as we're doing, I find it absolutely

         14  astounding, and it really, somehow rubs me such a

         15  wrong way, is that it's growing.  For all that we're

         16  doing, it's growing.  And we haven't put a dent in

         17  the school issue.  We haven't put a dent in the

         18  community issue in the entire City.  And the fact

         19  is, this has no cultural boundaries.  When something

         20  is wrong, it's wrong.  That is a message that should

         21  be easy to get out.  And it would seem to me that

         22  you could find those individuals that have instant

         23  recognition to be able to get these public

         24  announcements.  Because it's not hidden anymore.  We

         25  can use words as genitals, and what you do, and how
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          2  you examine.  So it's wide open.  And it seems to me

          3  that the Administration might want to take advantage

          4  of the power that we have in this City to bring this

          5  issue forward in more ways than one.

          6                 Is there any thought to really doing

          7  that?  Because I see, when somebody wants to sell

          8  Verizon cells, who they have. What star athletes

          9  they have to sell a car.  And why is it that we

         10  can't use the power that we have in the City of New

         11  York to reach our schools where it's growing?  To

         12  reach every part of this City? Why are we not doing

         13  that?  And I would think they wouldn't have to be

         14  paid to do that.  That's for all three.  And you all

         15  know, I think very highly of Health and Hospital

         16  Corporation, what Mental Health is doing,

         17  Administration has been doing things, in more ways

         18  than one that have brought us to levels.  But why is

         19  this not done? We're not pulling down the shade

         20  anymore.  I mean, I see who comes out for the

         21  TriBeca Festival.  Why can't we do that with a name

         22  that everyone recognizes?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: I think

         24  I'll take an attempt to respond.  Not directly to

         25  your question about why we are not doing that,
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          2  because I think that's a question I need to take

          3  back and discuss with colleagues at the Health

          4  Department.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: I understand that.

          6    I wasn't really asking to get an answer.  But I

          7  think you need to take it back for those areas in

          8  the Administration that have the ability to do that.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: I agree

         10  entirely.  And I actually think the  --  you know,

         11  some of the data that we were rattling off earlier

         12  in our testimony, really do speak to your issue, and

         13  that this is quite common among girls in high

         14  schools. And is a real concern.

         15                 I just thought I would introduce one

         16  additional thought.  I think star power is a proven

         17  campaign effort, or mechanism to bring home

         18  important, key messages through a media vehicle.  I

         19  will say, however, that I think experiences from

         20  tobacco campaigns around the country, particularly

         21  in Florida, have shown that there's different ways

         22  to reach youth.  Star power sometimes works.

         23  Sometimes kids see through it in a particular way.

         24  Star power isn't the only way.  It's a very good way

         25  for some issues.
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          2                 And another way that I'd like to add

          3  to your suggestion is kids speaking to kids.  And

          4  this is what has been seen to be most effective in

          5  the tobacco, anti- tobacco campaigns. So I just want

          6  to sort of augment your voice with additional

          7  thoughts on  --  and it depends on whether this is,

          8  of course, talking about prevention of sexual

          9  violence, between youths or speak up if it happens

         10  to you.  Very different massages.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: I appreciate your

         12  comments.  I think where I disagree with you is that

         13  the very nature of the issue separates it from

         14  talking about whether you smoke a cigarette or not.

         15  Because it involves  --  a child can get to a father

         16  and say you shouldn't take that.  And even take his

         17  pack of cigarettes and destroy it.  But it's another

         18  issue when they have to speak to a father, or a

         19  brother, or a friend, and discuss that openly.  So I

         20  don't agree with that comparison.  It's much easier

         21  to do something and take a cigarette away, than it

         22  is to bring out the philosophical and the

         23  sociological affects of what's happening. Even with

         24  classmates.

         25                 I'll call on my colleague, Joel
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          2  Rivera.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JOEL RIVERA: Thank you

          4  very much.  My questions pretty much  --  we were

          5  told about the SART program, and I think  --  I

          6  guess this will go to Richard  --  how much funding

          7  does that program receive?

          8                 MR. PLANSKY: As my colleague from HHC

          9  referred to earlier, the program was launched in the

         10  Bronx and Brooklyn at first using grant funding.

         11  After a year of the Bronx SART, we saw how

         12  spectacular the results were, obtained another grant

         13  to do Brooklyn.  Fast forward two years later, all

         14  four of the SART teams are now City- funded.  So the

         15  funding is baselined.  And it's ongoing.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: And how much is

         17  that?

         18                 MR. PLANSKY: Each one costs in the

         19  neighborhood of $400,000.  So it's not only

         20  effective, it's very cost effective as well.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: And it's equally

         22  distributed amongst all of the hospitals?

         23                 MR. PLANSKY: What they do is rather

         24  than  --  the previous model was treating sexual

         25  assault victims at City hospitals basically with
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          2  people who are on duty.  And there's a problem with

          3  that, because when people, whether they're nurses,

          4  physician's assistants, or physicians, and they're

          5  in an Emergency Room, they have continuing

          6  responsibilities.  So if a gunshot victim comes in,

          7  car accident, someone who is critically injured,

          8  that takes precedence, because fortunately, most

          9  rape victims are not critically injured.  But the

         10  unfortunate outcome of that was that rape victims

         11  would wait four, five, six hours or more to be seen.

         12

         13                 Now, rather than using resources that

         14  are actually at a fixed post on duty at that time, I

         15  think the beauty of the SART model is that these

         16  people are on call.  And when a sexual assault

         17  victim walks through the door, and they are called,

         18  and they come to the Emergency Room, that's their

         19  only responsibility. They won't get pulled away for

         20  anything else.  And if an examination takes four

         21  hours, then so be it.  The SART examiner will stay

         22  for four hours, until that examination is done, and

         23  done right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay.

         25                 We've also been joined by Council
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          2  Member James Sanders as well.  We have  --  I just

          3  wanted to find out  --  I guess this will go to the

          4  Administration  --  can you describe any attempts

          5  that have been made on the coordinated efforts of

          6  the City agencies with respect to intervening and

          7  preventing of sexual violence.  Like the

          8  collaborative efforts, the collaborative efforts.

          9                 MR. PLANSKY: So to that would fall

         10  under the purview of my office.  And again, I do

         11  work for the Criminal Justice Coordinator, and so we

         12  are, as the name would suggest, focused on law

         13  enforcement and criminal justice outcomes.  But SART

         14  is one of the best examples, as my colleague from

         15  HHC pointed out earlier, this is the essence of a

         16  collaborative project.  It was developed in

         17  partnership not only with HHC, but also with the

         18  District Attorney's offices and the Police

         19  Department, and it's maintained that way.  The

         20  effort is  --  every partner is critical to that

         21  effort.  It would not work but for all of these

         22  partners pulling together.

         23                 Another preventive effort that I

         24  might mention that is less collaborative than SART,

         25  but yet truly focused on prevention, is a project
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          2  that is about three years old called the Specially

          3  Targeted Defenders Project, or STOP.  STOP is an

          4  effort to use Megan's Law.  Megan's Law actually has

          5  an enforcement provision.  And it was very under-

          6  utilized in the years leading up to the STOP

          7  program.  But what Megan's Law enforcement

          8  provisions allow you to do is to take strong

          9  enforcement action against dangerous sexual

         10  offenders, without the necessity of waiting for

         11  another victim.  If a sexual offender who is

         12  required to register, moves without telling the

         13  police, fails to register every 90 days, or fails to

         14  send in an annual registration form, they've

         15  committed a crime.  And in the three years that

         16  we've brought together the District Attorneys, the

         17  courts, and the Police Departments to really focus

         18  on this, and not miss these opportunities, the

         19  number of arrests for Megan's Law violations, which,

         20  like I said, don't involve new victims, has more

         21  than doubled.  The incarceration rate for those

         22  arrests has more than doubled.  And over that same

         23  time period, from 2002 through 2005, the percentage

         24  of stranger rapes in the City has dropped about 54

         25  percent.
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          2                 So our intention was to do some

          3  prevention by sending a strong message to people who

          4  are likely to recidivate, and people who have been

          5  convicted of sex crimes in the past, I think we all

          6  know and agree are likely to recidivate, that's I

          7  think, a strong prevention effort on the

          8  Administration's part.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: And now that

         10  about 10,000 people whose names have been taken off

         11  of the list, how has the Administration been

         12  preparing for that?  Because we just heard about two

         13  weeks ago that about 10,500 names were going to be

         14  removed from the Megan's Law list.  How are we

         15  preparing for that?

         16                 MR. PLANSKY: Well, we're sort of in a

         17  difficult situation, because the Sex Offense

         18  Registry Act is a matter of State Law.  And that is

         19  controlled by Albany, as you know.  Now, I believe

         20  the numbers, Chairperson Rivera, that you are

         21  referring to are the people, I believe they're level

         22  one sex offenders, the lowest risk group in Megan's

         23  Law.  Their original period of registration was ten

         24  years.  And the law was enacted in 1996, and so this

         25  is the first year which some of the lower level
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          2  offenders on that list are due to expire and be done

          3  with the registration period.

          4                 Now there was some effort to either

          5  remove that ten year limitation, or suspend it.  And

          6  I believe that that has just failed.  I believe it

          7  was a recent court decision which struck that down.

          8                 And so, on the Administration's part,

          9  for people who are not part of Megan's Law, we don't

         10  have the option to enforce the failure to register

         11  crime, like we did anymore, because they no longer

         12  have the obligation to register.  But for those who

         13  are on the list, we certainly will continue to

         14  enforce that as stringently as possible.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay.  Next we

         16  have Council Member McMahon.  Then Dickens.  Then

         17  Barron.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you.

         19  I want to commend the Chairs for convening this very

         20  important meeting.

         21                 I think you're going to know what I'm

         22  going to ask here.  I got in a little late, but I

         23  looked at all of your statements.  This is not a

         24  joking matter, but do you all think that Staten

         25  Island actually ceded from the City?  Because
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          2  nowhere did you mention Staten Island.  And in fact,

          3  in Staten Island, we have no Special Victims Unit

          4  within the Police Department.  We have no public

          5  hospital.  We have no SART team working in the

          6  borough.  And in my district, in the last year,

          7  there's been upwards of a 40 percent increase in

          8  rape crime.

          9                 So women who are raped in Staten

         10  Island have to go through all that terrible waiting

         11  and delay, and process that you're trying to avoid

         12  for other people in the City of New York. Can you

         13  please tell me why victims of rape in Staten Island

         14  are treated the way they are?

         15                 MR. PLANSKY: Sure.  Let me clarify a

         16  little bit about the SART project.  And the reason

         17  why it started where it did.  So it started in HHC

         18  hospitals, which the City controls.  And honestly,

         19  the City has an obligation to make sure that our

         20  City hospitals provide the best treatment to rape

         21  victims.  Staten Island doesn't have a City

         22  hospital.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Correct.

         24  Yes.

         25                 MR. PLANSKY: Staten Island does not
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          2  have a City hospital.  And like I said, this is step

          3  one.  Step one was to take care of the City

          4  hospitals, try out this new model, and make sure

          5  that it works.  That's the first step.  It's

          6  certainly not the last step.  And we are now

          7  beginning the process, and we've already begun

          8  reaching out to St. Vincent's and the Staten Island

          9  Medical College, to   --  I'm sorry, Staten

         10  University Hospital Center  -- to number one, assess

         11  what their needs are.  And number two, see what the

         12  volume is as well.

         13                 Now, St. Vincent's has a fair amount

         14  of services in their hospital already.  They have a

         15  SAFE program.  They have people who are trained just

         16  like the people in SART are trained. And from what I

         17  understand, they've also received a grant and will

         18  be adding to that service in the Fall.  And Staten

         19  Island, the other hospital, all of the rape victims

         20  who appear there are treated by the OB/GYN staff,

         21  who are on call.  And provide a high level of

         22  service.

         23                 Now, they have decent services.  Does

         24  that mean they can't improve?  Absolutely not.  And

         25  we are committed to working with them.  And Staten
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          2  Island is an obvious place to start, because as you

          3  pointed out, they do not have HHC hospitals.  That

          4  doesn't mean that victims on Staten Island should

          5  receive a standard of care that is even slightly

          6  less.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Shouldn't

          8  they at least be interviewed and counseled by police

          9  officers who are trained especially to deal with

         10  special victims?

         11                 MS. BROWN: Well, if the St. Vincent's

         12  Hospital that has the SAFE program, they have to  --

         13    and I can re- read the requirements of the SAFE

         14  program, Council Member, they have to provide the

         15  quality medical care to the victim in a private

         16  setting.  So in order for them to been designated by

         17  the State Department of Health, they have to meet

         18  those requirements.  The private setting.  They have

         19  to provide an evaluation and referral. They have to

         20  have inter- disciplinary collaboration.  They have

         21  to work with the District Attorney's office.  They

         22  have to have rape crisis staff.  So they have  --

         23  excuse me  --  they have a core of those services

         24  that are required by the State.  The addition, in

         25  terms of the SART program, would be for the teams
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          2  who are those who are called  --  those who respond

          3  on an on- call basis.

          4                 That's what the SART would add to

          5  their existing complement of capacity.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I'm sorry,

          7  Ms. Brown.  But you can't try to convince me that

          8  the services that exist, not having specially

          9  trained police officers, a hit and miss approach of

         10  whether or not an OB/GYN is on call or not, and

         11  they're not always there, because I know they're

         12  not.  And whether or not the process of going to St.

         13  Vincent's is being followed or not, as opposed to

         14  having a City- run and funded SART program.

         15  Specially trained police officers to deal with the

         16  victims.  You're not going to try to tell me that

         17  those are comparable.  And until Staten Islanders

         18  get the same treatment that other New Yorkers get in

         19  many areas, especially in this most sensitive area,

         20  then please don't try to convince me that the

         21  services that are provided are in any way

         22  comparable, because they're not.

         23                 MS. BROWN: I didn't use the word

         24   "comparable".  I was talking about what they had to

         25  do in order to be a SAFE designated program.
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          2  Designated by the State.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But my

          4  question went to why do they not have comparable

          5  services.  And you tried to convince me, indirectly,

          6  that they are comparable.  Or that they're adequate.

          7    But they're not.  And until they are, I don't

          8  think you should come before this Committee and say

          9  otherwise.  And that's -  Staten Island is totally

         10  neglected when it comes to this area. And we

         11  continue to call to get equal services from HHC.

         12  From the Criminal Justice Coordinator.  And from the

         13  Department of Health. And what's going on right now

         14  is unacceptable.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.  Next

         16  we have Council Member Inez Dickens.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

         18  much Chair Rivera and Sears.

         19                 You mentioned that the funding for

         20  the SART program is now baselined.  Does that mean

         21  that it is an all  --  I was going to say five, but

         22  four boroughs then?

         23                 MR. PLANSKY: That's correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: All right.

         25  And as far as the STOP program, I think it's lacking
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          2  in what you talk about when you refer to recidivism.

          3    And why I say that is because of the rate that

          4  goes on in shelters.  Which I have not really heard

          5  anyone speak to.  But we could talk about in jails

          6  as well.  But in shelters, in homeless shelters,

          7  rape is on the rise.  And is frequently

          8  undocumented.

          9                 Also, as far as the police

         10  enforcement.  They're highly insensitive, regardless

         11  of SART, STOP, or whatever program you want to refer

         12  to, the police are still insensitive to rape cases,

         13  and they improperly, frequently improperly maintain

         14  evidence, specimen evidence that's necessary to the

         15  prosecution of rape cases.  So I think part of SART,

         16  STOP, or whatever, should include training.  And

         17  although I know you do have some training, it's

         18  woefully lacking and inadequate, because the Police

         19  Department and the local precincts are highly

         20  insensitive to these occurring.

         21                 MR. PLANSKY: I think that one of the

         22  main purposes of the SART program is to treat

         23  victims who come to the hospitals with the ultimate

         24  sensitivity and respect.  That's exactly what SAFE

         25  examiners are trained to do.  Everyone realizes that
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          2  this is a unique situation.  In that you have a

          3  victim who is coming to the hospital who has been

          4  subjected to perhaps the most catastrophic type of

          5  violation.  I spent nine years prosecuting sex

          6  crimes at the Manhattan DA's office.  I spoke to

          7  probably hundreds of victims, and I saw it first

          8  hand.  There is no crime, short of homicide, that is

          9  worse.  There's no question about that.

         10                 At the same time, it's very important

         11  to collect evidence from these victims, because it's

         12  really the only crime where the victim's body

         13  becomes the crime scene.  And that raises very, very

         14  sensitive issues.  And it shouldn't be done  --

         15  that sort of collection shouldn't be done by just

         16  anyone.  It should be done by experts.  And it

         17  should be done quickly.  And it should be done with

         18  sensitivity.  That is exactly what SART is all

         19  about. This is what they do.  They know what to look

         20  for.  They know  -- I think this is important too

         21   --  they know how to explain this process to the

         22  victims.  Because the rape kit itself is highly

         23  invasive, by necessity.  And it cannot be pleasant

         24  for a woman who has just been violated in the most

         25  intimate way imaginable.  And so what you're seeing,
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          2  I think, in the SART teams, so far, at least in the

          3  Bronx and Brooklyn, which have been done for a year

          4  and two years, is that victims are cooperating more.

          5    That more evidence is being found, because you

          6  have people who know what they're looking for.  Who

          7  know how to collect it.  Who know how to document

          8  it. And you're also seeing the early returns which

          9  certainly indicate that we're getting more DNA,

         10  which as everybody knows, is absolutely critical to

         11  catching and convicting the perpetrators who commit

         12  these horrible crimes.

         13                 And so, SART is about that very

         14  problem.  It is meant specifically to address the

         15  problem of what happens when the victim comes to a

         16  hospital.  And is in this terrible emotional state,

         17  and must, if we are to catch and convict these

         18  criminals, must be subjected to a procedure that is

         19  the furthest thing from pleasant.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: And also, I'm

         21  glad that it has been very successful in the Bronx

         22  and Brooklyn.  And I commend you.  And my Bronx

         23  colleagues, and Brooklyn colleagues.  However, I'm

         24  from Manhattan.  And I have found that it has been

         25  lacking. And I'm really referring to in my
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          2  particular district.  And so I do have major

          3  concerns about it, although I am happy about the

          4  expansion, and I would hope that the success that

          5  you have had in Bronx and Brooklyn will also

          6  manifest itself in the other boroughs.

          7                 MR. PLANSKY: We have every

          8  expectation that it will. And as of a few weeks ago,

          9  Metropolitan, Bellevue, and Harlem Hospitals all

         10  have this service.  It's based upon the same model.

         11  It's being coordinated out of my office, in

         12  partnership with HHC, and partnership with the

         13  Police Department, and partnership with the

         14  Manhattan DA's office.  And we have every reason to

         15  expect that the success of Bronx and Brooklyn will

         16  be duplicated both in Manhattan and in Queens.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: And also, as

         18  far as the SART program, I would hope  --  because

         19  that's after the fact  --  I would hope that a

         20  component would be added for prevention, such as

         21  what is going on in shelters every day, right now.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: If I can real

         24  quick.  I just have a follow- up question.  What

         25  steps, if any, are being taken to reach out to
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          2  survivors that have not reported their

          3  victimization, especially those that are not victims

          4  of rape?  Because I know SART is only for rape

          5  victims.  So what methods are we going about to

          6  reach out to people that don't report that they are

          7  victims?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: In my

          9  testimony, I described the City Health Information

         10  publication that we're putting out this Fall that

         11  will be mailed to all medical providers in New York

         12  City.  I think one of the biggest challenges for

         13  clinicians in trying to elicit this information, is

         14  that many clinicians don't know what to do with a

         15  disclosure.  And what we'd like to provide in the

         16  CHI, the City Health Information bulletin, is a very

         17  clear set of guidelines for clinicians to, once they

         18    -- first of all, how to identify and how to screen

         19  in a busy primary care health care setting.  This

         20  can be used by physicians, by nurses, by social

         21  workers.  How to identify forms of sexual abuse and

         22  domestic violence.  And then what to do at that

         23  point.  And I think many national surveys will

         24  identify that clinicians don't screen because they

         25  don't know what they can really do about it. And so
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          2  we've compiled a research directory, in partnership

          3  with the Mayor's Office to Combat Domestic Violence,

          4  and will make that available among other resources

          5  as well.

          6                 So that's one way to try to elicit

          7  more identification.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Just before our

          9  colleague, Charles Barron has his question on the

         10  same issue, I want to know what efforts are really

         11  being made for the trafficking of children and

         12  adults in New York City?  Which happens to be an

         13  extremely growing issue.  And I'm convinced that

         14  half the kids we can't find are victims of

         15  trafficking.

         16                 MR. PLANSKY: While I'm not an expert

         17   --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: I should refer to

         19  it as human trafficking.

         20                 MR. PLANSKY: Yes, Chairperson Sears.

         21  While I'm not --  I don't pretend to be an expert in

         22  trafficking, one thing I can tell you about that the

         23  Administration has done to address the commercial

         24  sexual exploitation of children is a project that is

         25  about a year old, that has been piloted in Queens,
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          2  called Operation Guardian.  Trafficking in children

          3  is not only horrible, it's a very difficult crime to

          4  stop, because almost by definition, happens in the

          5  shadows.  When young women are recruited or

          6  kidnapped away to engage in prostitution, it's

          7  difficult to know how many there are.  In fact, I'm

          8  aware of a study that's about to get underway at

          9  John J. To try to take an accurate census of this,

         10  but they're encouraged to lie about their age.  And

         11  it's difficult to know how many of them are out

         12  there, and what the actual patterns are.

         13                 But Operation Guardian is designed to

         14  address that very issue.  It has a couple of

         15  different components to it, but in the interest of

         16  brevity, what I will tell you is the essential

         17  theory of Operation Guardian is that if you want to

         18  get kids off the street, and if you want to get

         19  their pimps off the street and into jail, where they

         20  belong, then you really have to marry together

         21  social services and enforcement.  Because you can't

         22  get the kids off the street unless you show them a

         23  path to a different life.  And that requires

         24  services.  And that requires the immediate provision

         25  of services.  And that's one of the key components
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          2  of Operation Guardian.

          3                 The Queens DA's office now has social

          4  workers on call 24/7, 365, to engage these kids

          5  right away, and take advantage of that narrow window

          6  of opportunity to get them off the street and into a

          7  better place, and on the path to a better life.  And

          8  at the same time, if you can get the kid off the

          9  street and win her cooperation, then you can do some

         10  business with the pimps.

         11                 And another interesting aspect of

         12  Guardian is that the Queens DA's office is not only

         13  treating this as a crime of exploitation, which it

         14  clearly is, but it's also organized crime. This is a

         15  business.  This is big business.  And these pimps

         16  make a ton of money on the backs of these poor kids.

         17    And it should be treated as organized crime as

         18  well.  And some of the law enforcement tools that

         19  have traditionally been effective against other

         20  kinds of organized crime are also effective against

         21  this crime.  So, for instance, wire taps, search

         22  warrants, forfeiture. It really helps if you can

         23  take away the ill- gotten gains that these pimps

         24  make by working in the business of child

         25  prostitution. And so far, they've had a tremendous
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          2  amount of success in a short period of time.  I

          3  believe there have been over 25 arrests of pimps and

          4  those who help perpetrate this business, like the

          5  people who run hotels, cheap hotels that allow this

          6  to provide a safe place for this to happen.  They've

          7  had ten indictments, I believe, a number of search

          8  warrants.  Many, many kids connected to services.  We're

          9  also in development on a safe house for kids that is

         10  out of this environment, a place where pimps can't

         11  reach them, and they can start on the road to a

         12  better life.

         13                 And so, it is a very complicated

         14  issue, and I don't mean to simplify it in any way.

         15  But I think that we  --  like we have with sexual

         16  assault  --  tried to take a creative, outside the

         17  box approach to solving this crime.  This particular

         18  public safety issue as well.  It's not a simple

         19  problem.  It requires a multi disciplinary solution

         20  with a lot of different people working together.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: I appreciate that,

         22  but I'd also like to make the comment that those

         23  exploited are really victims, and they're not

         24  criminals.  Maybe we have to kind of shift our

         25  thinking a little bit on that.
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          2                 I believe that our next question is

          3  from Councilman Barron.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

          5  much.  I wanted to  --  well, first on that, I had

          6  another question I'll ask.  But I noticed, like in

          7  my area, I've met with the precinct on many, many

          8  occasions.  When it comes to the men, that are

          9  involved in that, they soft- pedal it.  They have

         10  like a "John school" for Johns to go to school.  But

         11  when it comes to the woman, you know, it's jail,

         12  they're arresting them.  I think they let the men

         13  off easy and put more enforcement pressure on the

         14  woman than they do the men.  But that wasn't my

         15  question.

         16                 I have a question for  --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: That's

         18  interesting.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes, they do.

         20  I mean, it's ridicules.  I mean, they have a John's

         21  school, and they  -- instead of going to jail, they

         22  have to go to this school to prevent them from being

         23  johns, but when it comes to the female who may be

         24  doing it for economic reasons, they are arresting

         25  them over and over again, and not providing more
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          2  programs for them.  But for the man, have a john's

          3  school.

          4                 But anyway, my question is for Dr.

          5  Thorpe.  You're saying there's a survey that you did

          6  that said 14, approximately 14,000 from this

          7  question, basically were raped.  When you asked the

          8  question that they   --  "Have you ever been

          9  physically forced to have sexual intercourse when

         10  you did not want to?"

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: That's

         12  correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And you're

         14  saying that approximately 14,000 girls attending New

         15  York City public schools have been raped.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: Which is

         17  probably in conjunction with the statistics that

         18  Council Member Rivera quoted at the opening.  I

         19  agree, it's a very large concerning  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And how many

         21  people did you survey?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: This

         23  survey, in 2005, was what we call a representative

         24  sample, so that we could obtain information not only

         25  Citywide, but also look at these statistics at the
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          2  borough level and then in three areas  --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I got that.  I

          4  just want to get to the sampling procedure.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: Totally

          6   --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: The sampling

          8  procedure was like a random sample?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: We

         10  sampled high schools, and then we  --  we randomly

         11  sampled high school, then we randomly sampled

         12  classrooms, and then every child in that classroom,

         13  high school student in that classroom.  In total,

         14  11,000 were sampled. I believe the final survey

         15  response was close to 9,000 students.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Nine thousand.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: The

         18  largest youth risk behavior survey in the country.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right.  Now

         20   --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: And that

         22  was a new question we added this year.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Because the

         24  reason I'm concerned about this question, is there

         25  any obligation once you get this information, to do

                                                            70

          1  WOMEN'S ISSUES AND HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  something   --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: That's a

          4  very good question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  --  About it.

          6    It's good to have the data, but what happens when

          7  you know, a young lady says "Yes".  Is there any

          8  obligation upon the sampling gathering agency --

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: It's a

         10  very good question.  And it's comparable to the fact

         11  that surveys sometimes ask about attempted suicides,

         12  which is also devastating.  And raises the question

         13  of should one intervene.  This question, in order to

         14  be able to identify that the problem exists, and is

         15  answered honestly by the high school students, is

         16  conducted anonymously.  It goes through multiple

         17  institutional review boards to make sure that this

         18  survey is done ethically.  Information, at the end

         19  of the survey, is provided to all students.  So if a

         20  question elicits an emotional response, whether it

         21  be about suicide, or about some violence a child has

         22  experienced, there's information for that student,

         23  and it's provided to the classroom proctors as well,

         24  to share with the students, so that they can act

         25  upon it.  And people that they can reach out to.
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          2                 But the only way to identify this

          3  problem is to conduct the survey in an anonymous

          4  fashion.  If it was not anonymous, I don't think

          5  we'd see this response.  Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Next, we have

          9  Council Member Foster.  Then Clarke.  Then Mark-

         10  Viverito.  Then Stewart.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.  I

         12  have a couple of questions.  We got the testimony

         13  after most of you had finished reading it, so I went

         14  back through it, and Ms. Brown, when you say the

         15  program was initiated two years ago in the Bronx, in

         16  response to the disproportionately high incidence,

         17  what do you  --  if you know  --  what led to those

         18  disproportionate high incidence?  How were they

         19  measured?  And then, tying that back in, when we

         20  look at --  okay.  Rich, how are you?  Good to see

         21  you.

         22                 MR. PLANSKY: Good to see you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Very good.

         24  And when we look at Mike McMahon, and Staten Island,

         25  and the fact that  --  I think that if this were any
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          2  other borough that was neglected like Staten Island

          3  is, we'd be up in arms.  If they didn't have an HHC

          4  facility in the Bronx, or  --  and I know Staten

          5  Island is a little different, but the fact that

          6  those numbers are high, and our response isn't like

          7  it should be, is quite concerning.  That's one

          8  question.

          9                 And then number two, walk me through

         10  the process of what a rape victim goes through when

         11  there is a SART person, program in place.  And then,

         12  walk me through what is supposed to be comparable in

         13  Staten Island, where the program isn't there, and

         14  there isn't even a HH facility there.

         15                 MR. PLANSKY: Sure.  I will take the

         16  first one, and defer to my colleague for the steps

         17  within the hospital.

         18                 So the reasons why SART began in the

         19  Bronx, as you correctly referred to, there was a

         20  disproportion in the Bronx.  And it's really just as

         21  simple as Bronx had, I believe, 26 percent of the

         22  City's rapes that year, I think it was 2003, the

         23  year before we started.  And at the time, Bronx had

         24  16 percent of the City's population.  So that struck

         25  pretty much everyone who heard it as a problem, and
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          2  a problem that needed to be addressed.  The second

          3  reason was that North Central Bronx Hospital was the

          4  very first hospital in the State of New York to

          5  receive the State Department of Health's designation

          6  as a SAFE Center of Excellence.  And so, you had a

          7  combination of great need and volume, and great

          8  expertise.  And so, in order to try a new model of

          9  delivering these services, it seemed like the exact

         10  right place to start.  And I think in retrospect two

         11  years later, it was.

         12                 Now, marching down the road, we want

         13   --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Wait, wait,

         15  wait.  Let me just interrupt you for a minute,

         16  because I get that.  And I know that you know, when

         17  we were at the DA's office together, there were

         18  times when we had a victim who wasn't a cooperating

         19  witness.  What I'm trying to understand with the

         20  Bronx in particular, is what, if you know, are

         21  specific patterns, behaviors, climate, whatever,

         22  that went to the fact that it had this high number?

         23                 MR. PLANSKY: That I couldn't tell

         24  you.  That I simply don't know the answer to that.

         25  What I can tell you is now their proportion is down
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          2  a bit.  In 2005, they accounted for 22 percent.  And

          3  over the last four years or so, their percentage is

          4  down pretty dramatically.

          5                 And so, from Bronx, the next step was

          6  Brooklyn. Brooklyn, at the time, had the highest

          7  number of rape complaints in the City, on an annual

          8  basis.  And so it seemed like a logical next place

          9  to go.  And down the road, to Manhattan and Queens.

         10  And just to address Council Member McMahon's issue

         11  once again.  HHC, we though, the 11 HHC hospitals

         12  were the right place to start.  Number one, because

         13  we have an obligation, because they're City

         14  hospitals, to make sure they provide excellent

         15  services.  And number two, that's where the volume

         16  is.  Last year, I believe it was 983 victims of

         17  sexual assault presented themselves at the 11 HHC

         18  hospitals throughout the City, in the four boroughs.

         19    In the four boroughs besides Staten Island.  Now,

         20  if you compare that number to the number of rape

         21  complaints for the same year, that's about 60

         22  percent.  And now if you add into that calculation

         23  the fact that a number  --  a fairer percentage of

         24  rape victims, especially domestic and acquaintance

         25  rape victims who report their rapes to the
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          2  authorities, don't seek treatment at hospitals.

          3  You're talking about a very large majority of the

          4  City's rape victims who seek treatment at hospitals

          5  come to public hospitals.  And so, if you're going

          6  to try to allocate your resources as wisely as

          7  possible to get the greatest benefit for your money

          8  and your effort, HHC was the right place to start.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: And I don't

         10  think you'll get an argument across the board.  I

         11  think that it's almost a given, and you're

         12  absolutely right.  What I am saying though, is that

         13  as we look down the line, and we see that it's

         14  logical and this is where the victims are going,

         15  then the next logical question is, What happens to

         16  those victims in Staten Island?  What is the

         17  process, then, where you don't have an HH facility,

         18  where there isn't a SART program, then what?

         19                 MR. PLANSKY: Right.  If I could just

         20  address the first part before I turn it over to my

         21  colleague.  I think  -- like I said.  HHC was the

         22  first step.  Everybody who has been involved in this

         23  project recognized that it was not the last step, in

         24  that we really can't stop this process, no matter

         25  how long it takes, until every rape victim gets that
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          2  same quality of care.

          3                 And so, going forward, we need to be

          4  very systematic about this.  And we need to look at

          5  all of the private hospitals in the City where rape

          6  victims to, and  I think we need to look really

          7  broadly at two factors.  Number one, volume.  Where

          8  are  --  if they're not coming to HHC hospitals,

          9  where are sexual assault victims going?  And number

         10  two, what are the resources that are currently in

         11  place in those hospitals?  Because places where

         12  there is great volume and great need are the places

         13  where we really should go first.  And I think

         14  probably people, most of us would agree on that.

         15  And then, down the line.

         16                 And so, Staten Island, we've already

         17  begun the process of reaching out to them.  And let

         18  me just give you a little bit about what I know

         19  about volume and current resources at the two Staten

         20  Island hospitals, St. Vincent's and Staten Island

         21  University Hospital.

         22                 So, in 2005, there were 54 reported

         23  rapes in Staten Island.  That's about three percent

         24  of all of the rapes Citywide. And of those 54, four

         25  of the reported rapes were stranger rapes. And what
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          2  we've seen, at least in the Bronx, over the first

          3  two years, is that a disproportionate number of

          4  victims who present themselves for treatment for

          5  sexual assault at these hospitals tend to be victims

          6  of stranger rape.  And I don't think that's too

          7  surprising, because a stranger rape is a very

          8  different sort of crime than domestic rape, in terms

          9  of the stigma, and in terms of, obviously, the

         10  relationship between the victim and the perpetrator.

         11  And the pressure is not to report.  It's a lot

         12  different if it's someone that you're living with

         13  and that you're financially dependent upon, and with

         14  whom you have children, as opposed to a woman who

         15  was pulled into an alley off the street by a

         16  complete stranger.  So we've seen a disproportionate

         17  representation of victims of stranger rape, at least

         18  in the Bronx SART.

         19                 So, in Staten Island, the volume,

         20  fortunately, is not enormous.  Now, that's 54 rapes

         21  too many.  And that's four strange rapes too many.

         22  And by saying that, I don't mean to minimize the

         23  need in any sense whatsoever.  Just to put it into

         24  perspective, because we can't do the whole City in

         25  one shot.  We have to do it where the need is most.
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          2                 But in St. Vincent's, they do have a

          3  SAFE program. There are people who have that

          4  training from the State Department of Health, who do

          5  have that designation.  Who are trained to

          6  recognize, collect, and package evidence.  Who are

          7  trained to deal with the emotional needs of rape

          8  victims.  And from what I understand, they have

          9  received a grant and they are about to be getting

         10  more in the Fall.  We have every intention of

         11  working with them to make sure that they have

         12  adequate resources to deal with the volume they

         13  have.  I don't know if they do yet, we're at the

         14  very beginning of this process.  We just finished

         15  with the HHC hospitals a few weeks ago.

         16                 And the other hospital, as I

         17  mentioned, Staten Island University Hospital, from

         18  what we are being told, the rape victims who present

         19  there, and there are very few, it's less than St.

         20  Vincent's, are treated by OB/GYN staff.  Which would

         21  seem to be a good way to treat rape victims, but

         22  then again, we have not done an analysis, this is

         23  just very surface.  This is what we're being told is

         24  an initial matter.  We're at the beginning of this

         25  process. The very beginning of step two, and we have
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          2  every intention of making sure that working with the

          3  private hospitals on Staten Island, to ensure that

          4  they have what they need to deliver high quality

          5  forensic and counseling services to rape victims.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Let me finish

          7  up, and then I definitely want to hear from you, Ms.

          8  Brown.  Let me ask Ms. Thorpe, you said in your

          9  testimony that assaults are more likely or higher in

         10  poorer communities and Black and Hispanic

         11  communities, as well as younger communities.

         12  Correct?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: That's

         14  correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: So they're in

         16  may lie the link between Bronx County.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FOSTER: I think

         18  you're right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay.  So that

         20    --  with that understanding, and with the three of

         21  you working in partnership, then it would appear,

         22  when we look at Staten Island, then there is a

         23  pocket in Staten Island that adequately reflects a

         24  poorer community, and a Black and Latino community

         25  where   --  that is where the hospital, St. Vincent,
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          2  and I don't know where they're located physically in

          3  relation to this community.  But that's then where

          4  we need to be focusing in terms of resources.

          5  Because 54 is 54 too many.  But if it's 54 within

          6  one district, one Council District, that says a lot

          7  to us.  And we already have the data there by our

          8  surveys that we know where it's more likely to

          9  occur. So it seems that it's most important that we

         10  target those areas.

         11                 MR. PLANSKY: I agree.  That would be

         12  a highly relevant factor to consider.  Because we

         13  need to go where the victims are.  Wherever they

         14  are, we need to make sure that the resources that

         15  they need can find them.

         16                 And so, like I said, we haven't done

         17  that analysis yet, but if in fact we see a

         18  geographic bundling of victims, then we need to make

         19  sure that the services are tailored to meet that

         20  need.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Okay.  Thank

         22  you.

         23                 MS. BROWN: Just to answer your

         24  question, I cannot speak to what happens when a

         25  victim comes to St. Vincent's Hospital.  I'm not
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          2  affiliated with St. Vincent's.  I'm not there every

          3  day.  But what I can tell you is that since they do

          4  have SAFE designation, that there are certain

          5  standards of care that they must comply with.  Which

          6  was my point.  And that is having available

          7  specifically trained individuals to assure that they

          8  collect the forensic evidence, having available

          9  counselors to do the counseling, having available

         10  space that can assure privacy and respect in

         11  treating the victim.  What they don't have, because

         12  this is what SART provides, is our people whose job

         13  it is exclusively to be dispatched to that site.

         14  Who are on call 24 hours a day, seven days a week,

         15  365 days.  By being a SAFE center, they have to have

         16  the staff who are there, they're there 24 hours.

         17  They're there seven days a week.  They're there 365.

         18    But as my colleague says, their job isn't

         19  exclusively to address the needs of a sexual assault

         20  victim when he or she  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: I get it.  I

         22  understand. Okay.  So walk me through, when I have

         23  someone exclusively dedicated  --

         24                 MS. BROWN: When you have someone at

         25  HHC --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Maybe if you can

          3  sort of run it through, because we have three more

          4  Council Members and another panel, so I apologize

          5  for --

          6                 MS. BROWN: Well just very quickly  --

          7                 MS. FOSTER: Thank you.

          8                 MS. BROWN: A victim comes into an

          9  Emergency Room at HHC, and that ER staff calls the

         10  specially designated forensic examiner, who will get

         11  there within an hour to assure that within that

         12  hour's time the victim is interviewed and forensic

         13  evidence is taken.  In addition, a rape counselor, a

         14  special abuse advocate, is also called.  And that

         15  person has to get there within 30 minutes to begin

         16  the counseling and the interviewing process.  So

         17  that's the difference.  There are staff who are

         18  already in the Emergency Room, they identify that

         19  the situation is a sexual assault situation, and

         20  then additional resources are brought to bear to the

         21  place to talk to that patient, and so that that

         22  person has those two individuals with them --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  At all times.

         24                 MS. BROWN: -- And for as long as they

         25  need for them to be with them.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: And those

          3  individuals are also trained on how to preserve the

          4  evidence  --

          5                 MS. BROWN: Absolutely.  Those

          6  individuals have to go through the 40- hour didactic

          7  training that I mentioned in my testimony.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you Council

         10  Member.  Next we have Council Member Yvette Clarke.

         11  And we do have another panel coming up afterwards,

         12  so I would ask that the questions be kept to a

         13  minimum.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         15  much Madam Chair, Mr. Chair.

         16                 My question really goes to the

         17  preventive end. Because you know, it's unfortunate

         18  that we have to be dealing with treatment.  And we

         19  have to.  I mean, that's a fact of life.  But one of

         20  the things that I found that we have not been as

         21  aggressive with is prevention.  And we know certain

         22  statistics around what happens with respect to

         23  sexual predators once they reach a certain age.

         24  Boom.  It's no breaking them out of this type of

         25  behavior. The modification.  We actually had a
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          2  hearing last year with DOE about how we introduce

          3  the notion of identifying students who may be high

          4  risk of becoming predators.  And that was a touchy

          5  topic, and people didn't really want to deal with

          6  it.  But my concern or question is if we don't deal

          7  with this, how are we breaking the cycle?  And are

          8  we then having to put much more money into

          9  establishing a SART at you know, every possible

         10  corner that we can find, because we haven't dealt

         11  with and explosion of predatory behavior within our

         12  communities.

         13                 I mean, it's the same challenge

         14  around domestic violence.  Sexual assault and

         15  predators, you know, they come from somewhere.  And

         16  until we begin addressing those behaviors, and begin

         17  to modify that and empower the young girls in

         18  particular, in the school setting, then we're really

         19  dealing with an uphill battle.

         20                 I'm sure if they go into the history

         21  of a number of the folks who are on Megan's Law's

         22  registry, we may have seen those behaviors beginning

         23  to manifest themselves when they were teenagers.

         24  But it has never been dealt with.

         25                 So I wanted to ask whether DOH, I
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          2  know that you often work in a collaborative way,

          3  have had any conversations with DOE about seriously

          4  addressing this.  Because we know that the behaviors

          5  are being fostered in certain environments, but

          6  we're not catching those individuals at a point

          7  where we can help them modify those behaviors.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER THORPE: Thank

          9  you.  Yes, I will have to get back to you on the

         10  specifics of any conversation between the Department

         11  of Education and the Department of Health. But I do

         12  believe that under the new HIV curricula  --  it has

         13  been revised with substantial involvement by the

         14  Health Department, with the Department of Education

         15   --  that there are  --  there's a broader array of

         16  topics that include negotiating certain sexually

         17  charged environments.  But I don't know the details,

         18  so I'll have to get back to you on exactly what is

         19  included in the current or new curricula being

         20  rolled out.

         21                 I will say, however, that I think

         22  you're correct in that prevention campaigns to get

         23  beyond just the identification and treatment need to

         24  go into a denormalizing of some of this behavior.

         25  And that's what we're trying to do in our community
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          2  campaign in Brooklyn.  That's not in the schools, I

          3  recognize, but that's a campaign attempting to say

          4  nobody should stand for this in the community.  If

          5  you see it, you know, it's your responsibility as

          6  well.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I just wanted

          8  to  --  and just to wrap up because I know we have

          9  another panel, and I just have another question, but

         10  when you start talking about star power, it's a

         11  mixed signal when you're dealing with sexuality in

         12  our society.  I mean, there is nothing positive

         13  about the portrayal of relationships in popular

         14  culture right now.  As some of the individuals we

         15  may be going to say, "stand up" are the ones that

         16  you know, portray individuals that  --  whose

         17  behaviors are kind of questionable.  So you know, I

         18  think that we have to really look at some real

         19  practical ways of addressing it for the next

         20  generation. Quite frankly.  And we have not been

         21  honest with them at all, and there is a sort of "by

         22  into", okay, you know, you're going to get hurt at

         23  some point during your life, deal with it.  And I'm

         24  sure the statistics that you got from your survey

         25  may be just a tip of an iceberg when you talk about
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          2  some of the behaviors that are taking place in our

          3  public schools right now, and there's a lot of

          4  denial around it, because some of the language I'm

          5  hearing from junior high school students really

          6  scare me.  Because I would have never, in my day,

          7  even fathomed it.  So I can imagine for some of the

          8  children today not really connecting what is abuse

          9  from what is just peer activities.  And that can

         10  then get to a whole other level that we won't have

         11  any control over.  That was just a comment.  And I

         12  hope you will take it back, because you know, it's

         13  great to be able to bring women to the surface, make

         14  sure they have the treatment available to them, and

         15  that they become survivors as opposed to victims.

         16  But at the same time, if you have coming up behind

         17  this a whole other generation that's going to be

         18  dealing with this, we have to have an approach for

         19  them.

         20                 And with respect to the SART program,

         21  how many personnel  --  do you know the numbers of

         22  personnel we have available for that program?  And

         23  how many per institution, per HHC institution?

         24                 MS. BROWN: I can get back to you with

         25  specific staffing levels.  But one of the reasons it
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          2  costs $400,000 is their availability on a 24- hour

          3  basis.  And so, in some cases, we pay on an  --  you

          4  know, when they come in  --  we pay on hourly rate.

          5  And it depends on their level of qualifications.

          6  And MD versus a CSW, et cetera.  So we can give you

          7  the  --  we can follow up after this meeting.

          8                 MR. PLANSKY: And I would just add

          9  that the SART teams cover all of the public

         10  hospitals in that borough.  So that they're not

         11  committed to a particular hospital.  They'll cover

         12  all of the public hospitals in that borough, which

         13  is one of the reasons why it's also cost effective.

         14  You could have 15 to 20 people, but that's not full-

         15  time equivalent staff.  You know, there are 15 to 20

         16  individuals who are called upon as it's needed.

         17                 MR. PLANSKY: And it's a call system

         18  as well, so they each take 12- hour shifts so that

         19  at any given time on any day, somebody is on call

         20  and available to come in within an hour.

         21                 MS. BROWN: So the remuneration is for

         22  availability and then additionally, when you're

         23  actually on site.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay.  That's

         25  all?   Next we have Council Member Viverito.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Thank

          3  you Mr. Chair. And I'd just   --  I mean, in a way,

          4  I don't want to be repetitive, but I know that it

          5  seems to be touching on a little bit of what Council

          6  Member Sears, our Chair Sears had brought up

          7  earlier, and Council Member Clarke, but in hearing

          8  with the testimony, we're dealing a lot with like

          9  the criminal response to something that happened.

         10  And I think it has been  --  I want to just

         11  reinforce the need for us, as a society, to start

         12  destigmatizing some of these issues.  When you talk

         13  about 42 percent of rape survivors do not report a

         14  rape, and you do mention the fact that a lot of

         15  these may potentially be acquaintance rapes, in some

         16  way, you know the person.  I mean, there's issues

         17  here that we really need to break down as a society,

         18  and destigmatize, so that women are empowered to

         19  basically report these incidences.

         20                 And then you know, in this discussion

         21  of violence, it's unfortunately coming at so many

         22  different levels.  We've go domestic violence.

         23  We've got the molestation of children.  We've got

         24  human trafficking, which is all wrapped up in this

         25  conversation.  And there are so many different
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          2  elements of these different struggles that we need

          3  to address.

          4                 But we need to look at this from a

          5  prevention point, as was mentioned by Council Member

          6  Clarke.  And we have a responsibility individually,

          7  and as legislators, to really emphasize that.

          8  Because it's not about coming to people that have

          9  been hurt, and are hurting.  It's about how do we

         10  get to a point where we try to prevent that from

         11  happening to begin with.

         12                 So you know, that's kind of something

         13  I hope we could address in a future hearing as well.

         14    So thank you for that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: If I just may say

         16  that the issue of prevention has certainly been

         17  brought up, and earlier I had met with a group, and

         18  one of the things that they were doing in the

         19  schools and how they do it, and it seems that HHC

         20  also needs to develop a plan that we can get into

         21  the schools and at the different levels.  Because no

         22  matter how you do it, I think the peers coming

         23  together is a way of addressing this.

         24                 But of course, we also have to be

         25  careful that families are not suddenly not having
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          2  conflicts within the families in addressing this

          3  issue.  So I understand all the sensitivities that

          4  are there with that, and why the issue has to be

          5  looked at so that those sensitivities are addressed.

          6

          7                 I do think that the Health and

          8  Hospital Corporation needs to call upon the local

          9  officials in their areas and see how they can best

         10  work with you to do this prevention.  What are our

         11  means of getting out there?  How we can fund

         12  different programs in the schools.  I think they're

         13  very key.

         14                 So we certainly will do that.  And

         15  we'll look for help on exactly what would be the

         16  best way to do it.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Next we have

         18  Council Member Mendez.  And then Mealy.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you.  My

         20  question is, what kind of sensitivity training is

         21  done for the SART teams and any other individuals

         22  associated  --  I also saw there was a SAFE team?

         23  In addition, specifically around LGBT issues, and

         24  particularly for the transgender community where

         25  people are transitioning, or haven't completed the
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          2  operation, or use a name, and physically, their body

          3  doesn't match their name.  Or their ID doesn't match

          4  their name, so that they are not victimized yet

          5  another time?

          6                 MS. BROWN: Well, the State SAFE

          7  training program has --  is a pretty wide  --  how

          8  should I say  --  covers a wide area of issues in

          9  terms of sensitivity, as well as sensitivity in

         10  terms of transgender issues, cultural issues, et

         11  cetera.  And we'd be happy to share with you and the

         12  rest of the Committee, rather than going into the

         13  detail of the curriculum, to share a copy of the

         14  curricula, or at least an outline of the curriculum.

         15    Perhaps that would be a better response to your

         16  question.

         17                 In addition, we overlay, to make sure

         18  that we're able to address the linguistic concerns

         19  of individuals.  So we want to make  --  we make

         20  sure that there are staff that's available so that

         21  you're not relying upon, frankly, family members or

         22  others in terms of the interpretation.  So that's

         23  also a particularly important issue that's included

         24  in the training too.  To make sure that you're

         25  equipped with the ability either to speak directly
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          2  in the language of the person and/or to use trained

          3  interpreters.  So those trained interpreters also

          4  have to go through a level of training.

          5                 But I'll be happy to share with you

          6  the curriculum outline.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Yes. If you can

          8  provide that to the Committee.

          9                 MS. BROWN: It's 40 hours of didactic

         10  training, so it's pretty extensive.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you.  We'd

         12  appreciate that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Good afternoon

         14  Chair Sears and Chair Rivera.  I just want to know,

         15  I hear so much going on with prevention, but what is

         16  the follow up after all this has been done? And I

         17  see you say 19 City programs, and that's not half

         18  enough adequate money there.  So where would you get

         19  the money?  After someone has been raped, after they

         20  went through the hospital training, do you have

         21  somewhere that you send them to that they can follow

         22  up?  Or maybe they  --  pregnancy.  Unwanted

         23  pregnancy. AIDS.  Where would they go to?  Do you

         24  have that in your program?

         25                 MS. BROWN: Well, as part of the SART
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          2  team includes an advocate.  A rape counselor

          3  actually does the follow up after the incident, and

          4  after the evidence is garnered, it's a very specific

          5  follow up, where the individual is contacted,

          6  counseling services are offered.  The individual has

          7  the availability of that advocate on an individual

          8  basis, but also can have the opportunity of being

          9  referred to, and connected to mental health

         10  services.  To answer your question in terms of the

         11  follow up.

         12                 In addition, during the  --  either

         13  at that Emergency Room visit, there is  --  we

         14  mentioned the prophylaxis that are given.  So in

         15  terms of contraceptives, a regimen of contraceptives

         16  are initiated, as well as prophylaxis in terms of

         17  sexually- transmitted diseases, including HIV.  As a

         18  matter of course.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: As a matter of

         20  course.  Okay. How long do your programs stay in

         21  contact with the individual?  Is it maybe just a

         22  month afterwards?

         23                 MS. BROWN: No.  No.  It's for a full

         24  year.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Okay.
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          2                 MS. BROWN: In terms of the advocate.

          3  An it's a full year at least, and then within that

          4  year, the intensity in terms of level of counseling,

          5  or level of therapy depends upon the individual and

          6  her needs.  And what she would like.  But at least a

          7  year.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Thank you so

          9  much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: If there are no

         11  further questions, we thank you for being here.  And

         12  we'll move on to our next panel.

         13                 The Alliance Against Sexual Assault,

         14  Safe Horizons, Long Island College Hospital, Mount

         15  Sinai Savi, and Urban Justice Center.  You all are

         16  one panel.  Will we have enough chairs for the --  I

         17  don't think we have enough at the  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: You may choose

         19  the order in which you begin.  Press the button and

         20  then.

         21                 MS. LESSEL: It's so confusing.  Hi.

         22  My name is Harriet Lessel.  I am the Executive

         23  Director of the New York City Alliance Against

         24  Sexual Assault.  And I want to thank the Chairs of

         25  the Health and Women's Issues Committee and all the
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          2  other members for attending today's hearings.  A lot

          3  of really important issues came out, and the

          4  Alliance is very happy to address some of them along

          5  with our colleagues.

          6                 I'm going to have Tamara Pollak, the

          7  Director of our Training and Education Program read

          8  our statement today.  So thank you.

          9                 MS. POLLAK: Just really quickly, I'm

         10  the Training and Education Director at the Alliance,

         11  and we are the Downstate certified program for

         12  training the Sexual Assault Forensic Examiners that

         13  staff the SARTs and the SAFE programs throughout the

         14  City.  And in response to the question about LGBTQ

         15  sensitivity training, we have special speakers from

         16  the New York City anti violence project at each

         17  session do a one- hour lecture on sensitivity to

         18  survivors from the LGBTQ community. And also about

         19  special short and long- term resources available to

         20  them.  And we update that on a regular basis to make

         21  sure that we're able to offer everyone, every

         22  clinician in the City providing this training, at

         23  least an orientation to the sensitivity and then

         24  hopefully, access to AVP for ongoing training.  So

         25  thank you.
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          2                 That being said, it might seem

          3  curious, but what I want to do is start talking

          4  today to you about bird flu.  It seems a little off

          5  topic, but bear with me for a moment.

          6                 Bird flu.  It scares us.  This is New

          7  York City. And a bird flu outbreak here could mean

          8  that the avian flu virus had spread into a dreadful

          9  pandemic.  So we take the potential of such an

         10  outbreak very seriously.  We study, we educate, and

         11  we put surveillance systems in place.  We do

         12  everything we can to anticipate which New Yorkers

         13  are at risk.  We train health care workers how to

         14  recognize signs and symptoms early.  We learn how to

         15  screen and test for bird flu.  We stockpile a drug

         16  called Tamiflu, the only known treatment, so we can

         17  make it available to anyone who might become

         18  infected.  And we pour money and time into

         19  prevention. Vaccine development.  Quarantine

         20  mechanisms, and education.

         21                 Worldwide, to date, since the virus

         22  was first identified in 1994, there have been only

         23  175 confirmed cases of bird flu worldwide.  And 96

         24  people have died.  That's it.  Only 175 confirmed

         25  cases.  Yet here in New York City, hundreds of
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          2  thousands of miles from the countries currently

          3  affected by bird flu, we have systems in place.  We

          4  have detection.  We have intervention.  And we are

          5  working hard on prevention.

          6                 A hundred and seventy- five confirmed

          7  cases worldwide, never a case in New York City.

          8                 So now, let's talk about what we're

          9  here to talk about.  Sexual assault.  Sexual

         10  assault, as you've already heard, can be defined as

         11  non- consensual sexual contact obtained by physical

         12  force, by threat of physical harm, or in situations

         13  in which the victim is unable to give consent.

         14  Sexual violence, like Chairperson Sears mentioned,

         15  encompasses a broad range of violence that includes

         16  not only rape and sexual assault, but also sexual

         17  exploitation and sexual harassment.

         18                 In 2005, it is estimated that 12,000

         19  sexual assaults occurred in New York City alone.

         20  And you'll hear various estimates throughout this

         21  testimony, because we, as a group, don't really know

         22  an accurate number.  But 12,000 cases in one year.

         23  Hundreds of thousands of people in New York City

         24  have experienced sexual violence in their lifetime.

         25  Hundreds of thousands.

                                                            99

          1  WOMEN'S ISSUES AND HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2                 So why is it, that when I visit the

          3  New York City Department of Health and Mental

          4  Hygiene's web page, there is an entire page

          5  dedicated to bird flu, discussing detection,

          6  intervention, and prevention?  Yet when I look for

          7  information on sexual assault, sexual violence,

          8  child sexual abuse, prostitution, there's no

          9  information.  There is no fact sheet.  There is no

         10  frequently- asked questions.  There is nothing on

         11  detection. Nothing on intervention.  And nothing on

         12  prevention.  In fact, the only mention of sexual

         13  violence on the website is to define it in the

         14  context of domestic violence.  And even then,

         15  specific sexual violence hot lines aren't listed.

         16  There is no mention of how health care providers can

         17  help stem the epidemic.  No guidelines for

         18  detection.  No best practice for intervention.  And

         19  absolutely nothing on prevention.

         20                 I am here today, along with

         21  colleagues representing local rape crisis programs.

         22  The New York Association for New Americans.  The

         23  Urban Justice Center.  And Safe Horizons.  The

         24  Council was kind enough to invite us here today

         25  because they recognize that sexual violence is an
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          2  important women's issue, and a pressing health

          3  issue, and indeed, it is.

          4                 Though the real extent to which women

          5  and girls experience sexual assault remains

          6  difficult to estimate, and it remains a research

          7  priority at the Alliance to discover more details

          8  about who is experiencing sexual violence here in

          9  New York City and how, this is what we know:

         10                 Women and girls are victimized by

         11  sexual assaults at alarmingly high rates.  Annual

         12  estimates reveal that women are over three times

         13  more likely to be raped than men.  And the National

         14  Violence Against Women Survey indicates that one in

         15  six women in the United States experience an

         16  attempted or completed rape as a child or an adult

         17  in her lifetime.

         18                 The Rape in America study conducted

         19  in the early 1990s found that 60 percent of the

         20  women who reported being raped were less than 18

         21  years old.  Thirty percent were less than 11. And 30

         22  percent were between 11 and 17.

         23                 More recent research shows that one

         24  in five female high school students reports being

         25  physically or sexually abused by a dating partner.
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          2  And despite the fact that these women experience all

          3  the consequences of being raped, they often don't

          4  even recognize their experience as having been

          5  victimized.  They have been brought up in a culture

          6  where forcing a woman to have sex is acceptable.

          7                 These numbers confirm the need for

          8  increased attention by the Council and by the public

          9  health community to recognize the true scope of the

         10  problem of sexual violence in New York City.  These

         11  national estimates help frame the picture we cannot

         12  begin to adequately address the problem in New York

         13  City without more statistics defining the local

         14  scope of the issue. This is how you approach a

         15  public health problem.

         16                 Currently, the Alliance has two

         17  studies underway that will yield critical

         18  information about the rate, the prevalence, and the

         19  nature of sexual violence perpetrated against two

         20  disproportionately victimized groups of women in New

         21  York City. High school students and undocumented

         22  immigrant women.  These studies were seeded with the

         23  generous monies of the Council, and their completion

         24  relies on sustained funding from the Council.

         25                 To this end, it is essential that the
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          2  City Council recognizes not only the need to conduct

          3  local primary research to discover the scope of the

          4  problem, but we also need to train health clinicians

          5  and other service care providers in techniques to

          6  foster and manage disclosures of sexual violence.

          7  This defines detection.

          8                 Health clinicians and other service

          9  care providers cannot assume that survivors of

         10  sexual violence will spontaneously report their

         11  experiences.  We know that cultural beliefs,

         12  stereotypes, feelings of self blame, and the

         13  powerful influence of rape myths prevent the

         14  majority of victims from ever disclosing their

         15  experiences to anyone.

         16                 The concurrent use of alcohol or

         17  drugs may also affect disclosure, especially among

         18  adolescents.  We know that most sexual violence

         19  occurs amongst individuals known to each other.

         20  Family members.  Dating partners.  Acquaintances and

         21  spouses.  And we know that in contrast to the

         22  disclosure of stranger rape, most disclosures of

         23  child abuse, sexual violence against adolescents or

         24  young adults, or non- stranger sexual violence do

         25  not occur in the Emergency Room, where we have heard
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          2  that the City is investing resources to establish

          3  wonderful best care practices.  But instead,

          4  disclosure of childhood sexual abuse, date rape, and

          5  sexual assault that occurs within the context of

          6  intimate partner violence may occur weeks, months,

          7  or even years after the victimization.

          8                 We know that if victims of sexual

          9  violence do not disclose, it is much harder for them

         10  to recover.  We know that if they don't talk about

         11  their experiences, no one can help them make the

         12  connection between their victimization and the

         13  physical and mental after effects of surviving

         14  sexual trauma.  Sexual violence injures a victim's

         15  mind, body, and spirit.  And the pain doesn't go

         16  away over time.

         17                 Detection.  Fostering disclosure

         18  among survivors is a key and pivotal step for

         19  stemming sexual violence.  What is New York City

         20  doing about detection at this time?  We heard  --

         21  HHC told us about a tool they designed.  This sort

         22  of training and detection needs to be performed on a

         23  much wider scale, all across the City.  And it needs

         24  to be linked to reliable referrals, to trained

         25  referrals.  Many clinicians and medical associations
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          2  agree that screening is the first step for early

          3  identification of sexual violence, as it is for many

          4  other diseases.  Routine and multiple screening, as

          5  opposed to indicator- based screening done by

          6  skilled health professionals can:

          7                 Increase the identification of sexual

          8  violence

          9                 Provide survivors with the

         10  opportunity to disclose abuse to providers

         11                 help health care professionals

         12  provide some options for interventions

         13                 lead to reduced morbidity and

         14  mortality

         15                 save the health care system millions

         16  of dollars.

         17                 Early detection of sexual violence

         18  will help victims and benefit the overall health of

         19  the City.  Discussion of sexual violence as part of

         20  routine health care will contribute greatly to

         21  overall prevention efforts, and revictimization of

         22  survivors.  When cases go undetected, survivors of

         23  sexual violence are at substantially higher risk for

         24  repeated sexual victimization.  You will hear a

         25  stark illustration of this when we describe the
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          2  commercial exploitation of youth later in today's

          3  panel. Overwhelmingly, young women who are exploited

          4  sexually, or forced into prostitution as youth would

          5  already experience sexual abuse in their homes.

          6  These women go on to face rape and physical assault

          7  as part of their everyday lives.  Detection and

          8  screening by professionals that is linked to

          9  comprehensive intervention could help prevent

         10  prolonged and repeat trauma amongst survivors of

         11  sexual assaults in New York City.

         12                 Service providers must learn not to

         13  see discussions of, and screening for sexual

         14  violence as a burden, but see it as an important

         15  part of overall best care.  The Council must

         16  recognize the training and development needed to

         17  reach this goal will require a dedicated health

         18  funding stream, a funding stream that does not

         19  currently exist in New York City, and that is

         20  urgently needed for sexual violence.

         21                 And that brings us to intervention.

         22  It is estimated, as we already spoke here today,

         23  that only a small fraction of sexual violence

         24  survivors in New York City ever access current

         25  victim services.  As my colleagues from rape crisis
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          2  centers will tell you in their testimony today,

          3  intervention services need to be improved and

          4  expanded in order to be accessible and appropriate

          5  to all survivors, including homeless survivors,

          6  immigrant survivors, survivors with intellectual

          7  disabilities, male survivors, and survivors who do

          8  not disclose until years after their victimization.

          9                 We know that the health outcomes of

         10  sexual violence are varied and far reaching.  We

         11  spoke of many of them today. Physical health

         12  outcomes including increased rates of sexually

         13  transmitted diseases, gastrointestinal disorders,

         14  pregnancy complications, back pain, migraines,

         15  disability preventing work and compromising quality

         16  of life.   We've talked about the short- term and

         17  long- term psychological consequences including

         18  shock, denial, withdrawal, anxiety, post- traumatic

         19  stress disorder, suicidality, unhealthy eating

         20  habits, and unhealthy health habits, like drug abuse

         21  and alcoholism, and abusing cigarettes.

         22                 As you've already heard, the majority

         23  of sexual violence victims do not initially seek

         24  care in Emergency Rooms. Though they often seek out

         25  care for the symptoms I've just named, at their

                                                            107

          1  WOMEN'S ISSUES AND HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  primary care providers, they rarely self identify as

          3  assault survivors.  For health providers, survivors

          4  vague and chronic symptoms and multiple visits often

          5  result in frustration. Because providers are not

          6  trained to recognize survivors, they are unable to

          7  discover the ideology of their patient's symptoms,

          8  resulting in inaccurate diagnosis, and inadequate

          9  care.

         10                 It is essential that we start

         11  expanding our approach to sexual violence

         12  intervention, by recognizing the need to offer

         13  services far beyond the Emergency Room, and by

         14  advocating for the training and resource development

         15  necessary to meet survivors needs.

         16                 Currently, the only City funding

         17  dedicated to sexual violence intervention in New

         18  York City comes from the Criminal Justice sector,

         19  and now we've heard today, tax levy dollars.  And a

         20  hundred percent of this money is spent providing

         21  care for the small percentage of survivors who

         22  access care in the Emergency Room.  The City

         23  currently spends zero health dollars on sexual

         24  violence intervention.  And the small amount of

         25  money provided by the State Department of Health to
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          2  fund 19 of the City's rape crisis programs is hardly

          3  adequate.

          4                 Again, City Council can help expand

          5  survivor's access to intervention services by

          6  ensuring that the City dedicates health dollars to:

          7                 Development of services in under-

          8  served areas and marginalized populations

          9                 Expanding rape crisis services, which

         10  provide survivors with both short and long- term

         11  mental health care

         12                 And ensuring that the City's primary

         13  health care and service providers are trained to

         14  screen for sexual violence and make reliable

         15  referrals to well- trained professionals.

         16                 And this brings us to prevention.  As

         17  you've heard, given the still overwhelmingly unmet

         18  needs of New York City, scarce sexual violence

         19  resources have to date, been dedicated to developing

         20  services for survivors, and mostly, only for that

         21  small percentage of survivors who report in

         22  Emergency Rooms.  What little prevention we manage

         23  to execute, given scant resources, has focused on

         24  harm reduction, telling women not to walk alone at

         25  night, not to go to bars alone, to carry pepper
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          2  spray, and to always be fearful. This is not

          3  prevention.  Our prevention efforts have never truly

          4  addressed the social norms that create perpetrators

          5  and silence victims.  In keeping with our mission,

          6  we must begin to work at this most fundamental

          7  level.  We must begin to change our culture.

          8                 There is currently no coordinated

          9  approach to sexual violence prevention in New York

         10  City.  There is no mechanism in place to ensure the

         11  prevention initiatives are adequately coordinated or

         12  strategic.

         13                 So what do we know and what can we do

         14  with the City Council's support?  We know that true

         15  prevention must involve diverse sectors of the

         16  public, as well as City agencies, including the

         17  Department of Education, the Department of Youth and

         18  Community Development, and the Department of Health

         19  and Mental Hygiene.  This year, the Alliance began

         20  organizing the City's first Sexual Violence

         21  Prevention Task Force.  Based on initial discussions

         22  with local experts and community leaders, it is

         23  clear that the Citywide strategy for sexual violence

         24  prevention must be designed as a catalyst for social

         25  change, with the power to transform deeply ingrained
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          2  attitude.  Local individuals and agencies feel like

          3  they cannot effectively prevent sexual violence in

          4  an environment of commercial media saturation that

          5  reinforces ideas of gender inequality, that fosters

          6  sexual violence.

          7                 The Alliance needs the City Council

          8  support to continue to work with the Task Force and

          9  lead the City towards a strategy to prevent sexual

         10  violence.  If we can do it for the bird flu, a

         11  public health problem that doesn't even yet exist in

         12  New York City, we can do it for sexual violence, a

         13  devastating problem compromising the lives of

         14  hundreds of thousands of New Yorkers. Sometimes it

         15  is easier to address problems that don't yet exist

         16  in the midst of problems that overwhelm us.  But we

         17  owe it to our daughters and sons at least to start

         18  to create a society that does not promote, tolerate,

         19  or ignore sexual violence.  Thank you.

         20                 MS. TSAI: Thank you for your

         21  invitation.  I'm privileged to be among a group of

         22  people who are dedicated in work of stop sexual

         23  violence against women and girls.  My name is

         24  Lillian Tsai.  I'm the Director of Social Work at

         25  Long Island College Hospital in Brooklyn.  I'm also
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          2  the Program Director for the Rape Crisis

          3  Intervention, Victims of Violence program.  This

          4  program has been working with the survivors of

          5  sexual violence for the last 21 years in Brooklyn.

          6                 The program provides services using

          7  the best practice models in the Emergency Room of

          8  the hospital.  All sexual assault victims who come

          9  through the ER will be able to meet the sexual

         10  assault counselor, who stays with the survivor

         11  throughout the entire ER visit.  They are treated in

         12  the private exam room with shower.  The counselor is

         13  either a social worker or a trained volunteer

         14  advocate who will provide advocacy, crisis

         15  counseling, and other needed support.  The best

         16  practice model also includes the Special Trained

         17  Sexual Assault Forensic Examiners, who provide

         18  expert, sensitive forensic and medical care to the

         19  survivors.

         20                 The program is also staffed with

         21  licensed social workers who provide individual and

         22  group counseling, advocacy, and information

         23  referral.  The staff social workers routinely

         24  outreach to the community to offer extended training

         25  and educational workshops on the subject of sexual
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          2  violence.  We receive many requests from area high

          3  schools and colleges for such prevention education

          4  workshops.

          5                 All the above services are free, and

          6  confidential, including the ER visits.

          7                 This program is funded by New York

          8  State Crime Victims Board, and New York State

          9  Department of Health, and private donations.

         10                 In year 2005, the Long Island College

         11  Hospital Emergency Room treated 89 sexual assault

         12  survivors.  The Rape Crisis Intervention Victims of

         13  Violence program provided various services to 295

         14  survivors of sexual violence.  We also receive close

         15  to about 1,000 telephone callers seeking for

         16  information during this year.

         17                 I believe that there are thousands of

         18  more victims and survivors of sexual violence who

         19  have not asked for help. Treatment for the survivors

         20  is important, because result of sexual violence can

         21  be devastating.  When girl survivors do not learn

         22  needed skills to defend themselves, they often will

         23  be assaulted again.  The symptoms of PTSD can last

         24  for decades.  In our program, we often don't see

         25  women right after onset of the assault incident.
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          2  They come in seeking for help when they experience

          3  another life changing event.  It may be birth of a

          4  child, marriage, divorce, or another sexual assault

          5  incident.  The girls come in for treatment usually

          6  as sending in by school guidance counselor or

          7  parents. They generally will have lots of resentment

          8  for coming for counseling.

          9                 We recommend our survivors to think

         10  about taking self- defense training.  We promote

         11  assertive training.  Due to the contract with the

         12  funding government agencies, we will provide

         13  counseling from five months to a year.  Some of the

         14  situations will be longer than 12 months.  Some

         15  other situations will be referred to psychiatric

         16  treatment or other long- term care services.

         17                 Throughout my career as a Social

         18  Worker, I believe a treatment is essential and

         19  important.  However, it is a bandage for many social

         20  problems.  If we're looking for a cure of this

         21  sexual violence against women and girls, we will

         22  have to look at the prevention work for the social

         23  problem of generation and generations.

         24                 Three years ago, New York City

         25  Council bestowed us with generous funding that
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          2  enabled us to start a new prevention educational

          3  initiative called "Peer to Peer Project".  Through

          4  the experience of working with high school and

          5  college youth, we realized that high school aged

          6  youth have already had a set of value that might not

          7  be receptive and workable concerning sexual

          8  violence.  It is our belief that working with middle

          9  school youth youngsters will ultimately impact the

         10  rate of sexual violence in the community.  This

         11  project is a collaborative work with local public

         12  middle schools in Cobble Hill section of Brooklyn.

         13  The filtration of this project for the past two

         14  years is monumental.

         15                 During the school year 2003- 2004,

         16  every student at MS 442 received only one 40- minute

         17  education on sexual violence. Many about sexual

         18  harassment.  School year 2004- 2005, the entire

         19  student body, about 300 boys and girls aged 11 to

         20  14, received two classes of training around the

         21  issues of sexual harassment, legal ramifications,

         22  self awareness, and assertive training.

         23                 Our program staff also trained ten

         24  seventh- grader peer educators.  They are now in the

         25  eight grade, and they are working in the school and
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          2  educating their schoolmates about identifying and

          3  stopping sexual harassment.  The peer educator's

          4  name and picture are posted by the school entrance.

          5  All the parents of the students are aware of this

          6  educational project.  For this school year, 2005-

          7  2006, two social workers from the program are in the

          8  school one day a week.  The faculty and students are

          9  working side- by- side to combat sexual violence.

         10                 In the coming school year, 2006 and

         11  2007, the eighth graders will have had three years

         12  of continuous training in issues around sexual

         13  violence.  We believe that they will be ambassadors

         14  to speak out against sexual violence in high

         15  schools.

         16                 With all the work we're putting Peer-

         17  to- Peer Project, it does not mean the sexual

         18  harassment incidences will not be existing in MS

         19  442.  The project only provides students with a

         20  glimpse about sexual violence.  They are continued

         21  to receive image of sexual violence from popular

         22  music, video games, and movies, when they are not at

         23  school.

         24                 All researchers and studies indicated

         25  that the population of adolescents and young adults
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          2  are most at risk for sexual violence.  Today's youth

          3  need to be exposed to subjects of this kind of this

          4  project in their school curriculum.  Since we know

          5  this age group is influenced easily by their peers,

          6  the peer educators will be most useful in every

          7  middle school and every high school.

          8                 We also have to invite other

          9  stakeholders such as music industry, major

         10  corporations, school systems, and other governmental

         11  agencies to join us in the effort to combat sexual

         12  violence against women and girls.  There is so much

         13  work before us, I wish that the 300 youngsters from

         14  MS 442 would spread the words about the message that

         15  they have heard through the Peer- to- Peer Project.

         16                 I wish there are more money for the

         17  program.  I wish that I would not see another sexual

         18  assault survivors in Long Island College Hospital's

         19  Emergency Room.  Thank you.

         20                 MS. BURKE: Good afternoon.  I want to

         21  thank the Chairpersons Sears and Rivera, and the

         22  members of the Committees on Women's Issues and the

         23  Committee on Health for providing this very

         24  important context for these remarks.  It's a

         25  pleasure to be here with you this afternoon to talk
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          2  about service provision to victims of the horrific

          3  and complex crime of human trafficking and modern

          4  day slavery, many of whom routinely suffer sexual

          5  assault.  My name is Florrie Burke, and am the

          6  Senior Director of International Programs at Safe

          7  Horizon, where I oversee the anti- trafficking

          8  program and the Solace program for survivors of

          9  torture and refugee trauma.

         10                 Safe Horizon is the nation's largest

         11  nonprofit victims' assistance organization, where

         12  each year, we serve more than 350,000 New Yorkers,

         13  who have experienced a wide range of violence and

         14  abuse in their lives, including domestic violence,

         15  rape, and sexual assault, homicide of a loved one,

         16  stalking, child physical and sexual abuse, and human

         17  trafficking.  Safe Horizon is extremely grateful for

         18  the Council's proposed funding for our three child

         19  advocacy centers.  This funding will allow us to

         20  extend the hours of services for all three centers,

         21  which are currently operating at full capacity.

         22                 Since the passage of the Federal

         23  Trafficking Victims Prevention Act, our anti-

         24  trafficking program has provided services to over

         25  230 victims of this crime.  We have assisted people
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          2  from over 50 countries, women, men, and children who

          3  have been victims of forced commercial sexual

          4  activity, domestic servitude, and a variety of other

          5  forced labor situations, including sweat shop labor,

          6  factory work, restaurant work, migrant farm work,

          7  hotel work, and servile marriage.  Currently, 76

          8  percent of our caseload is female, and 24 percent

          9  male.  Fifty- five percent of our cases involve

         10  forced labor and domestic servitude; and 36 percent

         11  involve forced sexual activity; and six percent

         12  represent servile marriages.

         13                 Our multi- lingual, highly trained

         14  staff assists victims in gaining access to housing,

         15  both immediate and longer term; food, clothing, and

         16  other basic needs; medical and mental health care;

         17  legal representation; ESL classes; vocational

         18  assistance; preparation for trial; ongoing

         19  supportive counseling; and access to services that

         20  will foster independence and stability. This

         21  comprehensive program model is successful in many

         22  ways.  For identification of victims, promoting

         23  independence, and collaboration with law

         24  enforcement.

         25                 Victims of the crime of human
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          2  trafficking are subjected to forced fraud or

          3  coercion, as they are put to work in sectors where

          4  access to information and helping networks is

          5  limited, making them even more vulnerable to

          6  exploitation and violence.  They are under the

          7  control of their traffickers, as their freedom is

          8  limited, documents are withheld, and they experience

          9  debt bondage.

         10                 Additionally, many U.S. Citizens,

         11  particularly young girls, are forced into

         12  prostitution and other forms of sexual exploitation

         13  against their will.

         14                 Many of the cases we have assisted

         15  with have been successfully prosecuted under federal

         16  law.  Services for victims of human trafficking are

         17  both intensive and expensive.  However, when trained

         18  personnel deliver these needed services, they are

         19  cost effective, as they promote independence, and

         20  the ability to function without support in the long

         21  term.

         22                 It has been documented that those

         23  individuals who do not receive the necessary

         24  services are more apt to disappear, return to the

         25  trafficker, return to commercial exploitative
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          2  situations, and/or need public assistance for a long

          3  time.

          4                 It is not unusual for women

          5  trafficked into commercial sexual activity, domestic

          6  servitude, and forced labor to endure rape, physical

          7  assault, and forced abortions.  These attempts to

          8  control, rob one's dignity and sense of one's self,

          9  may result in depression, untreated infections, drug

         10  addiction, et cetera, conditions requiring immediate

         11  attention once someone is out of the slavery

         12  situation.

         13                 Trafficked persons are often victims

         14  of threats against their family members, and

         15  psychological coercion that leave them feeling

         16  powerless and ashamed.  The need to work and earn a

         17  decent living has motivated these individuals to

         18  accept the words of the traffickers, promising a

         19  better life and employment opportunities.  And

         20  instead, they find themselves in degrading, horrible

         21  circumstances, where they are used over and over

         22  again, as commodities for others.  Children are

         23  truly innocent victims, preyed upon by families and

         24  friends, and used in ways that threaten to damage

         25  them forever.
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          2                 Specialized response mechanisms

          3  between and among City, State, and non- governmental

          4  organizations are necessary, and have been effective

          5  in New York City.

          6                 New York is one of the top three

          7  transit and destination sites of human trafficking

          8  in the United States. Recently, Safe Horizon and the

          9  New York Police Department were awarded joint anti-

         10  trafficking grants through the Department of

         11  Justice.  With an increased focus on the crime of

         12  human trafficking, the NYPD will be able to identify

         13  more cases, and refer to prosecutors and service

         14  providers.

         15                 There are many examples of documented

         16  cases where local law enforcement is the first to

         17  come into contact with individuals who are being

         18  forced to work against their will in a variety of

         19  situations.  And there are countless other times

         20  when officers are called in to intervene in domestic

         21  violence, assault, and other local crimes.  With

         22  appropriate training on the issue of human

         23  trafficking, these officers can raise the number of

         24  identified cases and be sure that victims have

         25  access to both service providers and the criminal
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          2  justice system.

          3                 Victims need ongoing support if they

          4  are expected to cooperate and testify in the justice

          5  system, a step that often puts them at great

          6  personal risk.  There is also a need for the

          7  provision of various services to survivors of human

          8  trafficking. Current barriers to services are lack

          9  of resources for agencies to provide the intensive

         10  case management demanded by this complex situation.

         11                 It is difficult to find safe housing

         12  as a means for victims to be protected from the

         13  traffickers and their associates while they become

         14  stable.  Currently, there is not a dedicated shelter

         15  for victims of this crime on the East Coast.  It is

         16  a constant challenge to find emergency safe housing

         17  for vulnerable victims that includes the other

         18  necessary supports.  It's not enough to have a place

         19  to sleep.  These victims often are rescued or escape

         20  without any personal belongings or personal

         21  identification, both figuratively and realistically,

         22  since the trafficker usually confiscates all

         23  identify documents.

         24                 Trafficked women may have been

         25  subjected to rape and sexual assault in brothels, as
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          2  a means of punishment and control, and many women

          3  have been subjected to forced abortions.

          4                 Support services by trained personnel

          5  are required in a sheltered situation.  Rapid

          6  assessment and access to needed ancillary services

          7  is critical.  Legal representation is important to

          8  assist the victim through the process.  It's

          9  imperative that these services, as well as City,

         10  State, and local benefits are provided for victims,

         11  regardless of immigration status or their

         12  participation in a law enforcement investigation.

         13                 The Safe Horizon anti-trafficking

         14  program coordinates and partners with many local

         15  agencies providing services to crime victims.  As a

         16  member of the Downstate Coalition for Crime Victims,

         17  we have relationships with many providers who can be

         18  of assistance to our clients.  However, victims of

         19  trafficking are denied access to any benefits until

         20  which time they are provided a federal

         21  certification.  This leaves many vulnerable women

         22  and youth without resources for food, housing, and

         23  medical and mental health intervention.

         24                 The federal law is a victim- centered

         25  law, and it is hoped that New York State will soon
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          2  have a trafficking law that provides for a victim-

          3  centered approach to services, as well as leading to

          4  an increase of successful prosecution of

          5  traffickers.

          6                 City and State agencies need to

          7  respond to victims with appropriate cultural and

          8  linguistic capacity.  The responsibility for

          9  language translation often falls on the service

         10  provider rather than the hospital or other public

         11  agency.  And this further complicates the role and

         12  workload of case management staff.

         13                 Safe Horizon supports reforms that

         14  would promote self sufficiency and independence for

         15  victims of human trafficking, and this includes

         16  access to safe and appropriate emergency and long-

         17  term housing; rights to State or local benefits and

         18  services, including State Crime Victim comp funds,

         19  regardless of immigration status or participation in

         20  investigation; assistance with securing immigration

         21  status; access to emergency services as undocumented

         22  workers, with a broader definition of the word

         23   "emergency"' and first responders and sexual

         24  assault and rape crisis programs who are trained on

         25  the issues of human trafficking, so that they know
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          2  what resources to access, should a victim come into

          3  their care.

          4                 It is critical that we remember that

          5  trafficking is a human rights issue.  It is also a

          6  socio-political and economic issue, and cannot be

          7  separated from issues of nationality, gender, and

          8  class inequalities. I welcome your questions.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 MS. THUFRAL: Does this work? Okay.

         11                 Thank you for having me here today. I

         12  am Juhu Thufral, and I'm the Director of the Sex

         13  Workers Project at the Urban Justice Center. And I

         14  am pleased to discuss two things today: The problem

         15  of trafficking in persons, and the problem of

         16  violence against sex workers.

         17                 I'll actually keep my comments about

         18  trafficking in persons short, because Laurie did

         19  such an excellent job of covering.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Okay, if I can ask

         21  you, maybe as you give your testimony, to begin the

         22  highlight of the issues you wish to highlight?

         23                 MS. THUFRAL: Yes, absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: So that we can

         25  have some questions.
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          2                 MS. THUFRAL: With respect to

          3  trafficking in persons, what I really would like to

          4  emphasize most, in terms of what the City of New

          5  York can and should do is really commit to training

          6  law enforcement and community members to identify

          7  traffick persons and to assist them appropriately,

          8  respecting their human rights. And the City must

          9  also commit to funding appropriate services for

         10  traffick persons.

         11                 With other members of the New York

         12  Anti-Trafficking Network, we are also currently

         13  working with the New York State Legislature to

         14  create comprehensive and effective State legislation

         15  to address the problems of trafficking in persons.

         16                 Some of those aspects really are

         17  creating an ability for local law enforcement to

         18  take on cases where perhaps there just aren't enough

         19  victims for it to become a federal case, where the

         20  federal government is finding that their resources

         21  are limited, as well.

         22                 And again, I really cannot emphasize

         23  enough the need for training for law enforcement.

         24  The local police.  And also, we find that it's often

         25  other community members who identify trafficked
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          2  persons and bring them forward.  And also, people

          3  who work at community- based organizations and

          4  immigrant groups in local immigrant communities.

          5  And so that kind of just large scale outreach and

          6  information dissemination is critical for this

          7  issue. Because we're really in the first part of

          8  this movement.

          9                 With respect to violence against sex

         10  workers, you know, it's clear that prostitution in

         11  any form is illegal here in New York City, and women

         12  who work on the streets have a great deal of contact

         13  with the police.  We released two reports in the

         14  last few years.  In 2003, there was a report called

         15   "Revolving Door on Street- based Prostitution in

         16  New York City".  And then in 2005, a report called

         17   "Behind Closed Doors", where we focused on indoor

         18  sex workers.  And the total number of sex workers

         19  whom we interviewed in those reports is 82 women,

         20  men, transgender women as well.  And really, our

         21  concerns that came out of that, and the concerns for

         22  sex workers themselves, I mean it was very clear

         23  that violence was a huge issue.

         24                 Current law enforcement approaches

         25  for sex workers takes the form of arrest.  However,
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          2  this police strategy often results in harassment and

          3  false arrests of sex workers. Furthermore, the vast

          4  majority of sex workers whom we interviewed, 98

          5  percent received no substantive services as a result

          6  of their arrest.  Meaning that they received more

          7  than a two- hour health class or community service.

          8  So arrest is not leading to appropriate services as

          9  is, I think, the hope of many in the City.         And

         10  so, I really want to highlight that whatever one

         11  thinks of prostitution, it is clear that as a result

         12  of an arrest based policy, most sex workers who have

         13  faced violence do not view the police and courts as

         14  a resource.  This problem is compounded by the fact

         15  that police do not always respond to the complaints

         16  of sex workers.

         17                 I want to just hit on the idea of

         18  police violence and sexual situations.  Respondents

         19  in both reports reported harassment, including

         20  sexual situations, violence, threats of violence,

         21  intimidation, and false arrests.  Sexual situations

         22  included inappropriate touching, extortion of sex,

         23  sometimes in exchange for not making an arrest, and

         24  even rape.  Thirty percent of the street- based sex

         25  workers interviewed have been threatened with
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          2  violence by police officers.  Twenty- seven percent

          3  had actually experienced this violence.  Fourteen

          4  percent of indoor sex workers interviewed

          5  experienced incidents of police violence, and 16

          6  percent have been involved in some sort of sexual

          7  situation with the police.

          8                 I just want to highlight one quote

          9  from someone. "There are times when someone says,

         10  it's hot tonight to sleep, you should get out of

         11  here.  Now what can you do for me?".  One woman

         12  reported stalking behavior by a police officer.

         13  Transgender women described similar issues with

         14  harassment, but also specific differences relating

         15  to officers checking their genitals, and making

         16  comments about their gender.

         17                 Sex workers also discussed police

         18  officers who were clients as well.  So that was

         19  another issue.  One indoor sex worker named Letitia,

         20  and of course, all the names have been changed

         21  throughout all of our reports,   --  "Just find us a

         22  way to help us with the police.  You have lots of

         23  women that have nobody to help them.  We don't need

         24  lawyers.  We need somebody to protect us when we get

         25  beat up.  When police mess with us.  Around here,
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          2  they don't arrest you.  They just mess with you,

          3  like they own you".

          4                 And I do want to highlight again,

          5  that it is not just women who are involved in sex

          6  work who are experiencing violence.  One man named

          7  Brian was hustling on the street. Pursuant to his

          8  arrest, he was slammed against a wall by the police

          9  twice, pulled his hair, sprayed him with mace, and

         10  slammed him against the wall.

         11                 In terms of violence from customers,

         12  80 percent of the street- based sex workers that we

         13  interviewed experienced either violence or threats

         14  in the course of their work.  Sixty percent of them

         15  had experiences with clients who became violent or

         16  tried to force them to do things they did not want

         17  to do, including rape, assault, and robbery.  Forty-

         18  six percent of the indoor sex workers interviewed

         19  have been forced by a client to do something that

         20  they did not want to do.  Forty- two percent had

         21  been threatened or beaten for being a sex worker.

         22  And 31 percent had been robbed by a client.  One

         23  woman named Sara described a client who came in and

         24  had a knife.  "I was cornered, and I was about to be

         25  attacked and raped.  I didn't go to the police,
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          2  because it would be coming out about what I've been

          3  doing".

          4                 Reporting violent incidents to the

          5  police.  Twenty three percent of street- based sex

          6  workers interviewed that they had positive

          7  experiences with police, but only when they went to

          8  the police as a victim of domestic violence.  But

          9  when they went as a victim of something that had

         10  happened during the course of their work, they did

         11  not receive appropriate assistance at all.  For

         12  those working indoors, 16 percent have received an

         13  appropriate response.  Sixteen percent who had gone

         14  to the police for help.

         15                 And then we had an interesting

         16  outcome where 43 percent of the indoor sex workers

         17  said that they were open to the idea of asking

         18  police for help, but then they continued to muse

         19  about it for a while, and say, "Well actually, I

         20  guess I could go to them for help, but I don't

         21  really think it would helpful and maybe I wouldn't".

         22    So it was sort of an interesting thing there,

         23  where we really had to interpret what they were

         24  saying.

         25                 Consistent and unpleasant
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          2  interactions with law enforcement leave sex workers

          3  to attempt to avoid the police as much as possible.

          4  The desire to do so is so strong, that most sex

          5  workers interviewed do not report serious and

          6  violent crimes committed against them.  And even

          7  when violence is reported, these crimes usually go

          8  unpunished, because violence against sex worker is

          9  passively accepted.

         10                 In our street- based report, many

         11  respondents of the report laughed and said "No", or

         12   "Of course not", when we asked whether they had

         13  gone to the police for help.  One woman said, "I

         14  went to the cops.  He told me we didn't have a right

         15  being in that area, because we know it's a

         16  prostitution area, and whatever came our way, we

         17  deserved it".  Another added, "I went to the police

         18  one time when I got raped, and they said, you

         19  shouldn't have been out there is the first place".

         20                 So I really want to emphasize that

         21  again, whatever we think of prostitution, sex works,

         22  whatever our ideas are about that, passive

         23  acceptance of such violence is not only deplorable

         24  in itself, but it encourages such violence.  Sixty

         25  percent of street based respondents had had

                                                            133

          1  WOMEN'S ISSUES AND HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  experiences with male clients who became violent.

          3  Such a percentage among any other population or

          4  group would prompt a very strong public response,

          5  some sort of outcry.

          6                 I also want to emphasize that not all

          7  sex workers police interactions are negative.  We

          8  interviewed the people who had very positive

          9  experiences with the police.  In fact, one woman

         10  reported that she had experienced violence, and then

         11  the officer was very helpful, interviewed her

         12  appropriately.  She recruited three other sex

         13  workers who were willing to come forward and testify

         14  against the guy.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Can you please sum

         16  up your testimony?  We'd appreciate that.  Thank

         17  you.

         18                 MS. THUFRAL: All right.  Positive

         19  encounters such as this one can help police write

         20  guidelines for best practices when assisting sex

         21  workers who come to them for help.  Police who see

         22  sex workers as legitimate members of society are

         23  more likely to be helpful and offer the same level

         24  of assistance that they would offer another person.

         25                 And so, I really want to know that
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          2  that is the  -- I mean, our really our most critical

          3  recommendation is that complaints by sex workers

          4  should be met with the same respect and regard that

          5  would be given to any other crime victims.  And that

          6  special attention must be given to police officers

          7  who commit violence or other crimes against sex

          8  workers.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you very

         10  much.  The last witness.  Please state your name for

         11  the record.

         12                 MS. FREDERICK HAWLEY: Lynn Frederick

         13  Hawley.  I'm the Assistant Director for Mt. Sinai's

         14  Sexual Assault Violence Intervention program.  And

         15  I'll dispense with the pleasantries and just get

         16  into my stuff here.

         17                 For 21 years, the Mt. Sinai SAVI

         18  program has been serving survivors of sexual and

         19  domestic violence.  The program has expanded and

         20  changed since 1984, to meet the evolving needs of

         21  the communities we serve, in both Manhattan and

         22  Queens.  But the fundamental dedication to providing

         23  free, confidential crisis and support services that

         24  are culturally diverse and sensitive to the

         25  individual needs of survivors has remained
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          2  paramount.

          3                 While SAVI operates under the

          4  administration under the Mt. Sinai School of

          5  Medicine, we are fully independent, 501- C3 not for

          6  profit, supported only by private donations and

          7  grants from foundations, corporate groups, federal

          8  and State agencies.  These resources must be

          9  stretched to ensure the continuation and enhancement

         10  of our key services, which include: Train and

         11  certify volunteer advocates who are on call at the

         12  Emergency Rooms of ten different hospitals in

         13  Manhattan and Queens, two of which are HHC. Our

         14  advocates are part of their SART teams.  SAVI

         15  recruits, trains, and coordinates over 250

         16  volunteer advocates that provide crisis intervention

         17  services to survivors.

         18                 Post trauma research has demonstrated

         19  that these initial interactions a survivor has

         20  following a traumatic event are the strongest

         21  factors in their recovery.  Our volunteer advocates

         22  make a real impact on survivors' lives.

         23                 Crisis intervention services in

         24  Emergency Rooms and in ongoing counseling are for

         25  model- lingual survivors who speak any of 20

                                                            136

          1  WOMEN'S ISSUES AND HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  languages.  We have staff and volunteers who speak

          3  Spanish, Russian, Italian, Hebrew, French, Chinese,

          4  Japanese, Korean, Taiwanese, Hindu, Gujarati, Urdu,

          5  Arabic, Greek, Creole, Dutch, Polish, Mandarin,

          6  Tagalog, and American sign language.  We try to

          7  cover everyone.  And we've had the fortune of having

          8  with so many advocates having the ability to reach

          9  these potentially linguistically isolated survivors.

         10                 We offer free, confidential

         11  counseling services for survivors of sexual and

         12  domestic violence and abuse.  We serve an extremely

         13  diverse community, ranging from Harlem through

         14  Ablatio, through the Upper Eastside, and into the

         15  immigrant- intensive neighborhoods of Queens.  The

         16  specialized individual and group counseling we

         17  provide is accessible to all, regardless of their

         18  live circumstance; and assist victims in their

         19  transition to being survivors, strengthening their

         20  families and neighborhoods in the process.

         21                 We have a new program, Operation

         22  Guardian, which Richard Plansky mentioned.  He

         23  mentioned social workers out of the Queens DA

         24  office, who are actually our SAVI social workers.

         25  It's an advocacy and counseling program for
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          2  commercially sexually exploited youth in Queens.

          3  Almost all of the children we serve in this program

          4  are girls between the ages of 11 and 19, who have

          5  long histories of sexual victimization already,

          6  making them extremely vulnerable for continued and

          7  commercial exploitation at the hands of adults.

          8                 A SAVI counselor who is on call to

          9  police, will go immediately to a precinct when a

         10  child has been brought in for solicitation.  The

         11  counselor gives referrals, provides counseling and

         12  clinical services, advocates for safe housing,

         13  supports her through the court process, supports her

         14  with family reunification, where possible, and

         15  generally makes every attempt to bring this young

         16  person back to a healthier adolescents from the

         17  trauma of the street.

         18                 We have a tachyon (phonetic) project,

         19  which is specific for the Orthodox Jewish community.

         20    This was brought to us as a particular need in

         21  some of the communities we serve.  And we also do

         22  community education to try to let people know what

         23  services are available, and the full range of them,

         24  and encourage them to come to us.  We have not

         25  crossed that line into prevention yet, so I felt
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          2  that other people would be picking that up.

          3                 As you can see, from starting out as

          4  a straight rape crisis program in '94, SAVI has

          5  witnessed the complexity and scope of survivors'

          6  needs evolve.  And we have developed services and

          7  programs in response.  But core realities have

          8  always held true. One, the initial response a trauma

          9  survivor receives upon disclosure is the strongest

         10  indicator of how well and how quickly they will

         11  recover.  Two, there is an undeniable need for

         12  follow- up care in the weeks and months following a

         13  traumatic event.  And sometimes years following a

         14  disclosure that has been kept hidden, in order for a

         15  victim to reach the point of considering herself or

         16  himself a survivor.  And three, ultimately, the

         17  possibility of recovery and survivor are attainable,

         18  with support services that build on the strength of

         19  the individual who has endured the sexual assault.

         20                 I'd like to emphasize today points

         21  two and three. Not to diminish the importance of

         22  contact in the Emergency Departments and the

         23  forensic and medical services provided there, but to

         24  emphasize that recovery is built from a full

         25  continuum of services, post ED, whether one reports
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          2  to the police or not, separate from the criminal

          3  justice pursuits that are clearly important to all

          4  of us here, and to some survivors, but not for the

          5  majority, who choose not to, or cannot take that

          6  route.

          7                 This past weekend, I had the

          8  privilege of working at SAY SO, which is the

          9  alliances  --  they're an annual 24- hour survivor

         10  speak out.  It was at Union Square.  I worked a

         11  shift from about six p.m. to one a.m.  And during

         12  that time, mostly it was survivor stories being

         13  read, and the number of survivors stood up from the

         14  audience, actually, to give voice to their own

         15  experience. Perhaps for the first time.  Very few

         16  spoke of the police, or a trial, or conviction of

         17  perpetrators.  Almost all of them mentioned the

         18  counseling, therapy, and support that brought them

         19  where they are today.

         20                 Why are these supports so needed and

         21  so vital? Common reactions among sexual assault

         22  survivors we've talked about them here, shame, self-

         23  blame, self- doubt, lack of trust, fear, anxiety,

         24  depression, a feeling of being damaged, a feeling

         25  that the assault was somehow their fault, anger,
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          2  disbelief.  All of these natural responses converge

          3  to make sexual assault and abuse the most under-

          4  reported of crimes, and can create an emotional

          5  environment in which the survivor not only doesn't

          6  report to criminal justice and medical

          7  professionals, they don't even tell their close

          8  friends and family members.  They suffer in silence

          9  until a brochure crosses their path, a speaker comes

         10  to their class or community group to talk about

         11  sexual violence, a movie is released in which the

         12  protagonist is raped.  Then the long- silent

         13  individual finds the courage to say to a complete

         14  stranger, a rape crisis counselor, "I was raped".

         15   "I was sexually abused by my mother".  "My

         16  boyfriend made me have sex when I didn't want to.

         17  Is that rape?".  For those people, we must have a

         18  comprehensive continuum of services that includes

         19  access to free, culturally specific, and

         20  confidential counseling and psycho-educational

         21  resources.

         22                 There's a quote from a research study

         23  that was published in Violence and Victims, in 2001.

         24    Results indicated that survivors who had someone

         25  believe their account of what happened, or were
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          2  allowed to talk about the assault, and considered

          3  these reactions to be healing, have fewer emotional

          4  and physical health problems than victims who

          5  considered these reactions hurtful, or victims who

          6  did not experience these reactions at all.

          7                 Rape crisis counselors are uniquely

          8  situated.  They have the training and ability to

          9  believe, listen, react non judgementally, and

         10  facilitate the victim from this first tentative

         11  disclosure to a full state of recovery.

         12                 Specialized counseling for these

         13  survivors becomes even more paramount when one

         14  considers the fact that a woman who has been

         15  sexually abused in childhood is 4.7 times more

         16  likely to be raped again.  Girls who are raped are

         17  over four times more likely to suffer with drug and

         18  alcohol abuse in adulthood.  And female adolescents

         19  who are sexually abused are more likely to develop

         20  eating disorders than their peers who were not  --

         21  the magnitude grows.  You need the counseling and

         22  supports over a period of time.

         23                 In this testimony, I can give you

         24  numbers about how many cases SAVI sees, and how many

         25  counseling hours we provide, and all of that, but
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          2  you can read it here.

          3                 I would just like to emphasize that

          4  it really is imperative that we have comprehensive

          5  full services, from detection into intervention, and

          6  through prevention.  None of it works in a vacuum,

          7  and none of it is any more important than any other

          8  piece. All of it is necessary.

          9                 And with that, I will stop so you can

         10  ask questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Before we ask for

         12  any questions from our colleagues, I would just like

         13  to make note that I want to thank LaRay Brown,

         14  representing the HHC, for staying for the whole

         15  testimony.  I think it's very commendable, and that

         16  is for HHC to really hear what follows after their

         17  leaving HHC, and what happens before they even get

         18  there.  So we want to thank you, because I think

         19  that that is very commendable, and certainly very

         20  helpful.

         21                 We've heard a great deal of testimony

         22  and very invaluable.  Some a little disturbing.  For

         23  instance, when you gave your testimony, you stated

         24  that when you got to high school, you found that

         25  they were not as bendable, adaptable, and that you
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          2  went on and thought that in the intermediate schools

          3  you would have a more  --  excuse me  --  flexible

          4  population in which to deal with that.

          5                 There can be a few things that are

          6  summarized from that.  That there is already fixed

          7  and attitudinal changes just do not occur.  And I

          8  would have to think, does that happen as they move

          9  on into adulthood?  And why it may be difficult to

         10  deal with young adults.  And go into the younger

         11  population in the intermediate schools, and how do

         12  you find  --  I just found that very alarming,

         13  actually.  Because in the high schools, we do have a

         14  large population throughout the high school system

         15  where sexual assault is there.  And they may not be

         16  bringing it out, but it's there.  And if you're

         17  dealing with a population that is not so pliable, in

         18  the recognition of this, and go on to the younger

         19  ages, and I recognize how important it is, but what

         20  do you do with that group?  What do we do with that

         21  group that you find not so pliable? And yet they

         22  need to be addressed.  They need to really have the

         23  severity of this issue really recognized by them.

         24                 MS. TSAI: First of all, the high

         25  school kids are receiving some of the training, some
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          2  of the exposure to the right attitude towards sexual

          3  relationships, towards relationship with any other

          4  human being.  We find, because of the current

          5  culture, children have access to 24- hour

          6  television.  They have video, music video.  They

          7  have video games that inherited in the tapes and

          8  stuff that they see, that violence towards woman,

          9  towards female, are acceptable, because these are

         10  idols of them.  And so the message has been

         11  ingrained in them for years and years, when they

         12  reach high school.

         13                 And that's why we think that middle

         14  school kids will be more  --  how do I  --  there

         15  will be more opportunity to educate and to salvage

         16  some.  That's our theory behind that.

         17                 And I firmly believe that middle

         18  school, high school, college, they all need more

         19  education in prevention, in intervention, in

         20  respecting female, period.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Would you propose

         22  that that kind of education is done in small groups?

         23  Or is it better so many peers with peer?  In large

         24  assemblies for instance, where you have the males

         25  and females, rather than reaching small groups at
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          2  different times.  How would you suggest that schools

          3  do this?

          4                 MS. TSAI: Okay.  Our experience with

          5  this particular middle school has been multitude of

          6  many years already.  About two years.  Three years,

          7  actually.  This is the third year.  We, at the very

          8  beginning, we were mixing girls and boys together,

          9  and we find that's not really helpful.  So this

         10  year, we have  --  actually two years ago, we have

         11  changed our method that we will use girls group and

         12  boys group for a large part of our education.  At

         13  the end, the girls and boys are together, and having

         14  a decent discussion.  And we find that' the most

         15  useful and respectful  --  also kids of that age

         16  will speak more freely among their peers of same

         17  girls group, all girls, boys group.  Because they

         18  are so much wanting to everybody's approval, and if

         19  their home own is telling them they have to behave

         20  certain ways in front of boys, and girls who would

         21  not say things among the girls.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you.

         23                 Councilman Stewart, I believe you had

         24  a question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you
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          2  Madam Chair.

          3                 Sometime earlier, I read that rapes

          4  and sexual abuse are on the increase of about 13, 14

          5  percent from last year.  From the previous year, at

          6  least.  But however, from time to time I hear

          7  elected officials say, well, New York City crime is

          8  down, and we are experiencing less of these results.

          9    But to me, it is a contradiction.  So could you

         10  explain to me?  I see that you're saying that we

         11  have much more of an incidence of rape and sexual

         12  assault.  However, we have elected officials who are

         13  saying, well, New York City is one of the largest

         14  big cities with less crimes. We're having less and

         15  less crimes.  And it's been down.  So which is it?

         16  Is it up or down?  What is it?

         17                 MS. LESSEL: I think as long as we

         18  only measure sexual violence by police reports,

         19  we're never going to have a true picture of what's

         20  gone on.  And the problem is, that we have not had

         21  another good measure.  You know, we still don't have

         22  the number of people who report to hospitals for

         23  rape and sexual abuse.  And we're hoping that the

         24  new SPARCs data that went into effect for 2005,  --

         25  but of course, there's always implementation issues
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          2  when a data collection system is put in,  --   will

          3  at least give us those kinds of numbers.  But

          4  remember, when we talk about that, they're only

          5  talking about police reports.  And what we know

          6  about police reports is that it's a certain

          7  percentage, and probably a certain percentage of

          8  types of crimes, right?  Stranger rapes are more

          9  likely to be reported than acquaintance rape, or

         10  intra familial, or rapes that happen to trafficked

         11  women or sex workers, or anything like that.  And

         12  that's really the problem with that data.

         13                 You know, as someone who has been

         14  working with sexual violence for  --  I don't know,

         15  16, 17 years now, I know that the levels are

         16  unacceptably high, higher than any of us think. That

         17  the more that you get out and talk to people, and

         18  identify  -- you know, they'll identify to you that

         19  this is something that's happened to them, but they

         20  never report it to the police.  And they never even

         21  receive health care.  And like somebody else here

         22  said, they never even told anyone.  And then for

         23  some reason, they do it.

         24                 So again, police numbers, you know,

         25  police reports cannot be the total measure of how we
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          2  judge what's going in with sexual violence.  And

          3  it's unfortunate that we don't have other good

          4  measures.  We need to find them.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Another

          6  problem that I have is that in terms of reporting

          7  these stats, we find that in families whereby it

          8  might be domestic violence or even sexual violence,

          9  what happens with another agency you might try to

         10  link the other agency, and then that family, that

         11  spouse may not want to report what is happening, and

         12  so  --  because they will be ACS, or whatever, may

         13  take their children.  So I'm trying to figure out

         14  what are we doing in terms of trying to make sure

         15  that that family is not continually punished by

         16  having their children taken away because there might

         17  be some sort of a violence there?  Which may not be

         18  the cause of the spouse.  What are we doing?  In

         19  terms of linage?

         20                 MS. LESSEL: What is this  --  I don't

         21    --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, what

         23  I'm saying, basically, you may have a family that

         24  has some sort of a sexual or assault or some sort of

         25  abuse.  Right.  And they are afraid to even going
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          2  forth, or going forward to really deal with it

          3  correctly, because if they do, their children may be

          4  taken away from them, put into foster care, because

          5  of something, some problem they have between the

          6  common- law wife and husband.  Or common- law

          7  husband.

          8                 And that, I'm trying to figure out

          9  what we are doing so as not to have the children

         10  taken away from the one who is being abused.

         11                 MS. LESSEL: Sometimes I think what

         12  you're talking about is sort of a domestic violence

         13  issue too. But when we're talking about childhood

         14  sexual abuse, what I think initially needs to happen

         15  is that the abuser should be the one that has to

         16  leave the household.  But you know, often, not only

         17  does that person's spouse, but sometimes the kids

         18  themselves don't want that person t be arrested and

         19  serve jail time.  And that's a really tough kind of

         20  case.  What do you do with a man who is sexually

         21  abusing kids in their family, yet the family does

         22  not want to be wrecked apart by this.  Right?  They

         23  don't want that person to go to jail.  And I think

         24  that's a really tough kind of situation.

         25                 But you know, we only have a criminal
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          2  justice response.  We don't have a lot of sex

          3  offender treatment programs. We certainly don't have

          4  sex offender treatment programs that people can

          5  choose to go to.  If someone is concerned that they

          6  might be sort of you know, maybe have  --  I'm sorry

          7    --  yes, maybe have a predilection to sexually

          8  abuse, we don't have a place for them to get

          9  services.  And that sort of all adds to what's going

         10  on.  We also know that with so much of what's going

         11  on with immigration, that if someone is going to be

         12  deported if they report this, and then they're the

         13  sole, you know  --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Provider.

         15                 MS. LESSEL:  --  You know, person who

         16  supports the family, these are big problems for

         17  these families.  And there's not a simple answer.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Anybody else

         19  with any comments?

         20                 MS. BURKE: I think there are efforts,

         21  and they're multi- disciplinary in nature.  And I

         22  would be very happy to go back to Safe Horizon and

         23  talk to those people who are experts in this,

         24  because I know they're working on it.  And get some

         25  answers to you. But I can't answer your question
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          2  very knowledgeably.

          3                 MS. FREDERICK HAWLEY: I do know that

          4  at Mt. Sinai, if a child presents in the Pediatric

          5  ED, and there is reason to believe that they have

          6  been sexually abused within the family, and there

          7  needs to be some intervention, an entire team comes

          8  together to support that child, similarly, to what a

          9  SART team would around an adult.  There are special

         10  rooms where they're interviewed.  They have everyone

         11  right there.  The police, social workers, medical

         12  professionals, advocates, someone to support the

         13  non- offending family members, to try to do as much

         14  as possible around the child so that they know they

         15  did nothing wrong.  But also to help the non-

         16  offending parent, say, "Look, we know that this is

         17  complicated, and what can we do to make this trauma

         18  less?".  Because there are economic factors, there

         19  are extra- familiar factors, there's what have you.

         20  But the idea, the first priority has to be that that

         21  child is safe.  And that if there is any reason to

         22  believe that abuse will continue, and you don't have

         23  any reason not to believe that at that moment, you

         24  need to remove one or the other.  For the safety of

         25  that child.  And then, letting them know that you
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          2  will put whatever supports are within your power to

          3  place there  --  and this team is a great example of

          4  that  --  to make it as child centered  --  thank

          5  you  --  a possible.

          6                 So they do exist.  Mt. Sinai does

          7  have one.  And our SAVI programs, since we don't

          8  work with children specifically, when they come in,

          9  I know that that's the route that they take.

         10                 MS. BURKE: I think that those are

         11  also the models of the child advocacy centers that

         12  I've referred to earlier to get the multi-

         13  disciplinary teams there.  So that these very

         14  complicated issues can be worked out to the best way

         15  possible.

         16                 MS. TSAI: As far as I know, the ACS

         17  does not take the non- offending parent away from

         18  the child.  I think the legal process is that all

         19  the health care worker has a responsibility to

         20  report the incident, if it's within the family, to

         21  ACS.  And if it outside the family, to police.

         22  That's the law requires us to do that.  If we

         23  discover there's a child in our Pediatric Emergency

         24  Room we have to do either on of the above

         25  situations.  But the non offending parent usually is
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          2  protected.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: That is what

          4  we would expect. But invariably, what we find is

          5  that that child is removed before the case is

          6  settled.  Removed from the non- offendant parent.

          7  And to me, that is what is being happening in the

          8  past.  And I see that as a problem.  And that's why

          9  I'm asking if there is anything that we are doing,

         10  or you are doing, at least to make sure that all the

         11  different agencies that are coming together to make

         12  sure that that parent that is a non- offendant

         13  parent is not further punished by having those

         14  children taken away.

         15                 MS. FREDERICK HAWLEY: One of the

         16  things is, when you're working with  --  if there's

         17  a domestic violence situation, for instance, and we

         18  are working with the victim.  Let's say it's Mom.

         19  If we're working with the mother in a domestic

         20  violence situation, and all of a sudden it comes up

         21  that the husband not only has been abusing her, but

         22  has been abusing a child, then we can help to put

         23  legal remedies in place for her that she can get an

         24  order of protection, and have that man moved out of

         25  the house.  So that the rest of the family can
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          2  remain intact.

          3                 It's at the point at which the

          4  disclosure is made, makes all the difference.  If

          5  you go into a Pediatric ER, and it comes up, then

          6  lots of things step in and take control.  We're

          7  mandated reporters too.  If it comes up in

          8  counseling.  But we may have time to step in and

          9  work with ACS in a way that it happens more quickly

         10  in an ED.

         11                 So it depends on the circumstances of

         12  the disclosure.  But absolutely, as a social worker,

         13  you're instinct is to preserve that family, not to

         14  stigmatize, victimize, and scapegoat that child any

         15  longer, or any more than they already feel.  And

         16  remove the offender until such time as help can be

         17  brought to him, if he can ever be brought back into

         18  the family. But it is complicated.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay.  I just

         20  have a couple of questions.  We've also been joined

         21  by Council Member Tish James.

         22                 Just wanted to ask for the Urban

         23  Justice Center.  I know you gave out reports about

         24  the NYPD and pieces of that nature. Do we have the

         25  amount of CCRB complaints that have been filed
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          2  against the NYPD in situations like this?  And how

          3  they've been increasing over the years?

          4                 MS. THUFRAL: I don't have any numbers

          5  for how many CCRB complaints have been filed.  I do

          6  know that in our advocacy with NYPD, they've really

          7   --  rather than sort of addressing this from the

          8  larger policy issue of you know, say that they want

          9  to put protocols into place, they would rather see

         10  people come forward and file a complaint with the

         11  Internal Affairs Bureau, or with CCRB. But what

         12  happens is that people who are in this situation,

         13  are just like they're afraid to come forward to

         14  report to the police in the first place, they're

         15  doubly afraid to then go and report an police

         16  officer.  Because often, people live and work in the

         17  same area. They may be targeted by the police

         18  officer on a continued basis.

         19                 I think that again, we need to step

         20  back and realize that it's that sense of stigma and

         21  shame that really prevents them from coming forward

         22  in any way.  So those numbers are not reflective of

         23  what's actually happening.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Do we have any

         25  prosecution that has been taking place against the
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          2  NYPD members, in reference to this?  Or --

          3                 MS. THUFRAL: None of our clients have

          4  stepped forward to file a sort of litigation or you

          5  know, complaint directly.  The stigma is just too

          6  strong.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Just too strong.

          8                 MS. THUFRAL: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Now what about

         10  sensitivity training.  Is there any extensive

         11  sensitivity training given today in NYPD in how to

         12  handle these situations and how they shouldn't abuse

         13    --

         14                 MS. THUFRAL: Not on this issue, and

         15  not to my knowledge.  I mean, we've really tried to

         16  you know, open that kind of dialogue with the Police

         17  Department, and I think that again, there is some

         18  resistance to treating this, again, where you step

         19  back and create protocols and training up front.

         20  But they would rather see it just sort of treated as

         21  a case- by- case complaint base.  And that's not

         22  going to work for the population.

         23                 So that's something that we advocate,

         24  and if the Council would support that, I think that

         25  would be very helpful to have a broader range of
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          2  groups and obviously, stakeholders, you know, seeing

          3  the value in that kind of training.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Now, for the

          5  Sexual

          6  Violence Prevention Task Force, who sits on that

          7  Task Force?  And how do they get appointed to it?

          8                 MS.: We started out with a

          9  mobilization meeting where we recruited people who

         10  are already active in prevention from all over the

         11  City.  So from rape crisis programs, and also from

         12  other similar health problems that have already

         13  launched prevention efforts.  So from the HIV world,

         14  teen pregnancy, teen drug use.  We recruited

         15  prevention specialists for an initial mobilization

         16  meeting.  What we hope to do is empower leaders in

         17  every community throughout New York City to take

         18  ownership of this problem and come to the Task

         19  Force.  To that end, we've been working on a social

         20  marketing campaign to make the Task Force something

         21  people want to become involved in.  And to make

         22  sexual violence a problem that people in every

         23  community  --  and whether you would define that

         24  geographically, or based on ethnicity, or based on

         25  sexual orientation, every community in New York City
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          2  want to join this Task Force.

          3                 So we've created a title for our Task

          4  Force, which is "Not in Our City".  We've developed

          5  a logo, and we're developing an advertising

          6  campaign.  And we hope to launch this effort more in

          7  the late Summer and Fall with a mural campaign that

          8  will recruit youth- based organizations from every

          9  borough, one in every borough, to do a mural project

         10  in public outdoor space, to depict how they see

         11  sexual violence in their own community and what they

         12  want to do to stop it.

         13                 And we're hoping with the attention

         14  paid to that mural project, we'll be able to recruit

         15  people who don't currently have this issue on their

         16  agenda, but then recognize it as something they want

         17  to come forward and work to prevent.

         18                 We think that this is such a broad-

         19  based and needs to be something that is so

         20  intimately embraced by communities in order to

         21  actually do the prevention education that will reach

         22  people in those same communities, that we need to do

         23  this sort of broad based, very strategic outreach to

         24  make this happen.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Now, we've heard
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          2  over the past couple of weeks about the unfortunate

          3  situation with the mother who prostituted her two

          4  daughters to the lawyer.  Excuse me.  But we hear

          5  about those things taking place often.  And what has

          6  been done to reach out to young children in the

          7  schools, so that  --  you know, to potentially

          8  report situations of that nature?  Or to report

          9  whether or not a teacher is abusing their power,

         10  which we've also heard of quite often, too many

         11  times.

         12                 MS. LESSEL: I have a comment, and I'm

         13  sure other people have comments as well.  There are

         14  many excellent groups that go into New York City

         15  schools to do something around identification, and

         16  speaking out.  And maybe even prevention.  But I

         17  think the problem is that it's very scatter shot.

         18  There is no strategic, systematic program that every

         19  school kid receives around, you know, what sexual

         20  assault and abuse is, who you can tell, and what you

         21  can do about it.  And I think until we really have a

         22  system- wide you know, policy, and train staff, and

         23  a program that we're really not going to have kids

         24  who either are experiencing it, come forward, or

         25  really be able to work on prevention in the schools
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          2  in a systematic way.

          3                 And that's what I would say is what's

          4  occurring now. I don't know if  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: That's amazing.

          6  Because if we can standardize reading and math, why

          7  can't we standardize this type of education and

          8  outreach?

          9                 MS. POLLACK: Because they already

         10  have so much standardized into their curriculum and

         11  testing, and all of that, that it's difficult.  But

         12  I used to do risk reduction education. What Harriet

         13  was describing.  I would hang around in these

         14  schools, I would sit in the library.  I would hang

         15  out in the cafeteria.  I would make myself

         16  available.  I got to be known as the Rape Lady. You

         17  know, you're at the mall, and the next thing that

         18  happens is, "Hey, it's the Rape Lady".  I still see

         19  those kids.  But you have to be really be imbedded.

         20  It's not going and doing a 40- minute presentation

         21  and saying now you can call this number.  You have

         22  to have some sort of connection.

         23                 And I remember, there was a program

         24  in Connecticut, where one of the crisis programs

         25  that had a huge shelter, actually. They shared staff
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          2  with a school system.  That person was a resource

          3  guy who hung out in the cafeteria.  Who hung out in

          4  the library. Who played hoops after school.  And he

          5  was known as the person who wasn't a teacher.  That

          6  wasn't paid by the school.  That wouldn't narc on

          7  them.  But over time, he was the one they started to

          8  go to with their disclosures.  But it took a while,

          9  and it's expensive. But it's worth it.  He got more

         10  disclosures in six months than I did going in for

         11  three years doing the education that I did.  And I'm

         12  pretty good at what I do.

         13                 So there are models to do it, we just

         14  don't have anything standardized right now.

         15                 MS. FREDERICK HAWLEY: I also just

         16  want to mention some State legislation, and the name

         17  of the bill and bill number are escaping me, but

         18  it's sponsored by Assembly Member Scarborough,

         19  William Scarborough, I think.  But it's legislation

         20  that would allow for minors who are arrested for

         21  prostitution offenses to be treated as victims

         22  rather than as perpetrators.  And fed to services

         23  rather than to juvenile facilities that type of

         24  thing. And we can get that bill number.

         25                 It will probably hit me when I'm on
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          2  the subway on my way home.  But I could e- mail that

          3  to you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: I think there

          5  being no further questions, certainly I wish to

          6  thank you for being here.

          7                 And I think the advocates have

          8  presented a lot of information that obviously, the

          9  Women's Issues and the Chair of the Health Committee

         10  will put our heads together, because obviously, we

         11  have to look at the funding so that some of this can

         12  really be started.

         13                 And I would agree that we need to

         14  look at the schools.  I have to say, though, that

         15  there is really some alarming information that has

         16  come.  And the gaps are huge.  And if we don't do

         17  something that really identifying those gaps, and

         18  having the interagencies have more of an effort,

         19  it's those gaps that really have the increase of

         20  what we're really talking about.  And I could see

         21  that we really need to do that.

         22                 And certainly, the Health and

         23  Hospitals Corporation, I have to tell you, it's

         24  commendable for what you've really started, and

         25  what's going on in those facilities.
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          2                 So there's a lot for us to do.  I

          3  really personally want to thank you, and for the

          4  work.  And I think that you have helped enormously

          5  to bring it to the level that it's at.

          6                 For me, we've got to go very high

          7  with it.  And I think, but we've had a great start,

          8  even though it's been around for a few years, like

          9  anything else with women's issues.  You go forward,

         10  and then there are two steps taken back.  And when

         11  you take those two steps forward, again, there are

         12  always some that are pushing it back.

         13                 So as much progress as has been made,

         14  there have been many steps going backwards.  And

         15  that's what we have to stop. So I really thank you.

         16                 Joel?  You have  --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes.  I just want

         18  to say thank you both, to the Administration and to

         19  the advocates as well. Because you do do a fine job

         20  at presenting your case.

         21                 I just want to let you know that the

         22  City Council, I'm pretty sure I speak on behalf of

         23  everybody here, will continue their support of

         24  funding to make sure that we can hopefully put you

         25  out of business by making sure none of it happens
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          2  again.  You know? Thank you for coming.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SEARS: With that, this

          4  hearing is adjourned.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 4:40 p.m.)
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